CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
April 2, 2009 Meeting Agenda
25510 Lawson St., Black Diamond, Washington

7:00 P.M. - CALL TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE, ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are encouraged to
do so at this time. When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your name and address. Please
limit your comments to 3 minutes. If you desire a formal agenda placement, please contact the City Clerk at 253-631-0351.
Thank you for attending this evening.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1.) AB09-029 —-Ordinance Regarding Minor Changes to Transfer of Development
Rights Program Mr. Nix
(Possible action may follow public hearing)

APPOINTMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, ANNOUNCEMENTS: None
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None

NEW BUSINESS:

2.) AB09-030 Resolution Authorizing Contract with Beckwith Consulting Mr. Nix
3.) AB09-031 Ordinance Revising Weight Limit Exemptions on City Streets Mayor Botts

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:

Community Development - Proposed Master Planned Development Ordinance Changes
Mr. Pilcher
MAYOR’S REPORT:
COUNCIL REPORTS:
ATTORNEY REPORT:
PUBLIC COMMENTS:
CONSENT AGENDA:

4.) Claim Checks — April 2, 2009, No. 33240 through 33316 in the amount of $212,563.74
5.) Minutes — Council Meeting of March 19, 2009 and Workstudy Notes of March 19, 2009

EXECUTIVE SESSION:
ADJOURNMENT:

Americans with Disabilities Act — Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-886-2560)



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Post Office Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION

SUBJECT: | Agenda Date: April 2,2009 AB09-029
Department/Committee/Individual Created | Reviewed

Ordinance No. 09-895, minor Mayor Howard Botts

modifications to the Transfer City Administrator -Gwen Voelpel

of Development Rights (TDR) code. Asst. City Attorney —Tom Guilfoil X

City Clerk — Brenda L. Streepy
Finance — May Miller
Public Works — Dan Dal Santo

Cost Impact: N/A Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson

Fund Source: N/A Police —

Timeline: Changes will go into effect five Court — Kaaren Woods

days after the passage of the ordinance. Natural Resources/Parks — Aaron Nix X

Attachments: Ordinance No. 09-895, Appendix A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The City of Black Diamond created a Transfer of Development Rights (TDR) program in 2003
in order to protect property rights, while allowing development rights to be transferred from
properties that have been determined to be of greater public benefit as open space, parks or
community facilities.

Minor changes to the TDR program were needed in order to allow the program to run more
efficiently and effectively to meet the needs of the City of Black Diamond.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Staff conducted a workstudy session with the
full council in September of "08. Bringing forth changes to the full council for approval.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  MOTION to adopt Ordinance No. 09-895, making
minor changes to Chapter 19.24 relating to the City’s Transfer of
Development Rights Program.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

April 2, 2009




ORDINANCE NO. 09-895

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY
WASHINGTON, MAKING MINOR CHANGES TO
CHAPTER 19.24 RELATING TO THE CITY’S
TRANSFER OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the City of Black Diamond created a Transfer of Development
Rights (TDR) program in 2003 in order to protect property rights, while allowing
development rights to be transferred from properties that have been determined to be of
greater public benefit as open space, parks or community facilities; and

WHEREAS, minor changes to the TDR program were needed in order to allow
the program to run more efficiently and effectively in order to meet the needs of the City
of Black Diamond; and

WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing on the proposed
changes to the Transfer of Development Rights program on April 2, 2009; and

NOW THEREFORE,

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, KING
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council adopts changes to chapter 19.24, Transfer of
Development Rights (TDR) program attached to this ordinance and hereby incorporated
by reference as Exhibit A.

SECTION 2. This Ordinance changes shall be in full force and effect five days
after its passage, approval, posting and publication as provided by law. A summary of
this Ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the Ordinance in its entirety.

SECTION 3. If any provision of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this Ordinance shall remain in
force and effect.

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 10f19




Introduced the 2nd day of April, 2009.

J Passed by a majority of the City Council at a meeting held on the o day of April, 2009.

Mayor Howard Botts
Attest:

| Brenda L. Streepy, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Loren D. Combs, City Attorney

Published:
Posted:
Effective Date:

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 2 of 19




Appendix A

Chapter 19.24 TRANSFER OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS (TDR) PROGRAM

19.24.010 Definitions.

When used in this chapter, unless the context indicates otherwise, the following words
when capitalized shall be defined as set forth in this section.

"Development right certificate (DRC)" means a document issued by the city
administrator indicating the development rights available for transfer. City DRCs shall
mean DRCs that are created by the TDR bank.

"DRC holder" means the person or entity who appears in the TDR program database as
the person entitled to use the development rights specified in a DRC.

"Final letter of notification" means the official action of the city, through the city
administrator that establishes a parcel as being a TDR sending area.

"Preliminary letter of notification" means the written notice provided to parcel owners
of eligible sending sites notifying them of the parcel's potential eligibility to participate in
the transfer of development rights program.

"Public benefit lands" mean parcels that have been or may be approved as TDR sending
areas due to the presence of outstanding environmental, resource or recreational values,
or provide significant public benefit(s) by preserving or defining the character of the city
or will provide a site for necessary city facilities.

"TDR receiving area" means the real property designated by the city to which
development rights can be transferred under the TDR program. The TDR receiving areas
are identified on the map entitled the TDR program map, which is attached to Ordinance
752 as Exhibit 2 and is dated December 18, 2003. Further TDR receiving areas may be
established pursuant to the process set forth in the TDR program.

"TDR receiving area parcel(s)" means the lot of record upon which the TDR receiving
area is located.

"TDR sending area" means the real property from which development rights can be
transferred under the TDR program. The initial TDR sending areas are identified on the
map entitled TDR sending area map, which is attached to Ordinance 752 as exhibit 2 and
is dated the 26th day of December, 2003.

"TDR sending area parcel(s)" means the lot of record upon which the TDR sending area
is located.

"Transferable development right (TDR)" means an interest in real property that
represents the difference between the existing use of a parcel and its potential
development use. This right is made severable from the parcel to which the interest is
attached and transferable to another parcel for development and use under Black
Diamond's TDR program.

"Treasured place" means a public benefit land that, due to its high significance and
uniqueness for environmental, cultural, aesthetic, community or strategic city planning
purposes, its immediate acquisition by the city is deemed to be of the utmost importance
to the public welfare.

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 3 of 19




"UGA agreement" means the agreement between the city of Black Diamond, King
County, Plum Creek Timber Company, L.P. and Palmer Coking Coal Company, dated
December 31, 1996. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.020 Parcel owner notification.

A. Prior to sending the preliminary letter of notification the city administrator will hold
a public meeting to explain the TDR program to interested persons. Written notice of the
meeting will be sent to parcel owners whose property is identified on the TDR sending
area map as a TDR sending area, to all persons who have requested notification, and shall
also be posted and published in the same manner as an official city notice.

B. The mayor is hereby directed as soon as possible, but no later than April 30, 2004,
based upon available staffing and funding, to direct the preparation and submittal of the
preliminary letter of notification. The city administrator will identify each parcel that
qualifies as a TDR sending area and send the owner of record a preliminary letter of
notification. The preliminary letter of notification will indicate that the property has been
identified as a TDR sending area, and will provide an estimate of the number of
development rights that are available on the parcel based upon information existing at the
time of notification, including any "bonus development right" as authorized by the TDR
program. Neither the preliminary letter of notification nor the final letter of notification
creates a vested right to the number of development rights indicated. The actual number
of development rights attached to a qualifying parcel will only be calculated at the time
an owner files an application for a development right certificate (DRC) pursuant to
Section 19.24.060.

C. The city administrator shall create a parcel database to be known as the TDR
program database that will provide information that will track the development rights
created pursuant to the TDR program. It shall include such information as the city
administrator deems necessary to administer the TDR program and shall include
information for tracking the identified TDR sending areas, the owners of the TDR
sending areas and the estimated development rights available for transfer. It shall also
include information regarding development right certificates (DRC) including the names
and addresses of DRC holders, and details of any DRC transfers. Each development right
eligible for sale or transfer will be serially numbered preceded by its King County tax
parcel number and entered in the city's parcel database by the city administrator. The
numbering system will include a code to identity those development rights which were
created as a result of a successful administrative appeal and a code to indicate the status
of the development rights (e.g., final letter of notification, DRC applied for, DRC issued,
development right sold or transferred, or modified by zone classification change). The
TDR program database shall be available for public inspection upon reasonable notice.

D. After sending out the preliminary letters of notification, the city administrator will
hold a second public meeting to review the program and describe the procedures for
exercising and transferring development rights. At the city administrator's discretion,
additional public meetings may be held, if necessary, for the purpose of explaining the
TDR program and procedures.

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 4 of 19




E. As soon as practicable after the conclusion of the public meetings the city
administrator shall issue a final letter of notification (FLN) regarding each parcel for
which a preliminary letter of notification was provided. The FLN shall identify the tax
parcel that contains a TDR sending area and an estimate of the number of transferable
development rights associated therewith. This information shall be entered in the TDR
program database.

F. Any parcel owner who does not receive a final letter of notification but believes its
parcel is eligible to participate in the TDR program, may submit a letter to the city
administrator requesting a final letter of notification. The city administrator will
determine whether the parcel contains a TDR sending area and either a final letter of
notification or an explanation as to why the parcel is not eligible.

G. The issuance of an FLN or a refusal to issue an FLN shall be a final decision for
purposes of determining whether a property contains a TDR sending area. This decision
may be appealed to the city council following the same procedures provided in Section
19.24.070 for appeals relating to development right certificates (DRC). If the basis for
appeal includes a dispute with regards to the size of the TDR sending area, then the
appeal application, in addition to the requirements of Section 19.24.070, must include a
survey, stamped by a licensed surveyor or professional engineer authorized to practice in
the state of Washington, showing the alleged dimension error in relation to the actual
field conditions. (Ord. 755 § 1, 2004; Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.030 Allocation/calculation of transferable development rights.

A. The issuance of an FLN does not impact the use of a parcel containing a TDR
sending area. The underlying development and zoning regulations continue to apply.

B. Once a DRC is issued for a TDR sending area, only those uses consistent with the
conservation easement and as further limited by Black Diamond zoning and development
regulations shall be allowed on the TDR sending area.

C. Parcels zoned community commercial prior to January 1, 2004 shall have three TDRs
transferable for each one-fourth acre within the TDR sending area. All other parcels shall
have one TDR transferable for each one-fourth acre within the TDR sending area.
Provided, parcels designated as low density residential on the TDR program map must
retain at least one development right per one acre or portion thereof. That portion of a
parcel that was used to satisfy zoning bulk requirement or other conditions of
development, or that is already subject to a conservation easement or other encumbrance
that was not created as part of the TDR process and that effectively results in the same
protection from development that is afforded by being a TDR sending area, shall be
excluded from being considered in the calculation to determine the number of available
TDRs.

D. In calculating available development rights, the area of the parcel that is within the
TDR sending area shall be used. A minimum of one-fourth acre of the parcel must be
contained within the area to be protected for transferable development right eligibility.
No fractional development rights shall be created.,

E. Optional Bonus. Fee ownership of certain TDR sending areas may be preferred by
the city. These are areas to which intensive public access may be desired, such as active

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 5 of 19

; [ Deleted: For the parcels designated as
* | low density residential on the TDR

program map a minimum of one-half acre
of the parcel must be contained within the
area to be protected for transferable
development right eligibility. Any
fraction of a development right that
provides for at least one development
right shall be rounded to the closest

{ whole number.

~




recreation parks, public trails, or other properties for which significant expenditure of
monies are anticipated to be made by the city, in order for the property to maximize the
potential for which it was preserved. If the city accepts an offer to convey a fee
ownership interest, or a lesser estate, such as for a public trail that will have high public
use but, due to real property laws regarding conveyances the fee cannot be transferred the
owner will receive two transferable development rights for every unused development
right associated with the parcel. Notwithstanding the eligibility of the parcel, acceptance
of a fee interest or public trail easement is within the discretion of the city council. If a
property has been designated a treasured place, then it shall receive the bonus density
established in the treasured place designation process, which will not be more than three
TDRs for every unused development right.

F. If the city acquires fee ownership of a parcel that was designated as a TDR sending
area, and the development rights were not already transferred from the parcel, then the
city may receive a DRC for the TDR sending area so acquired. The TDR associated with
TDR sending area acquired by the city shall equal the total development potential of the
site, even though the site will subsequently be developed consistent with the purpose for
which it was acquired. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.040 Treasured place designation process.

The treasured place designation process can onlv be initiated by the city council
adopting a resolution identifving an area as a potential treasured place. The process set
forth in subsections 19.24.160 (B) through (E) shall be followed. with the additional
requirement that the staff report and the planning commission recommendation shall also
set forth whether or not all or a portion of the property meets the criteria for treasured
place designation. and. if so, what conditions, if anv, should be placed upon the
designation. and the recommended density bonus credit that should be given. Once an
application has been properly submitted. no development mav occur on the nominated
site until the application for treasured place status has been approved or denied. and all
appeals completed or waived. However, the council may set a time limit on how longa

decision on approval or denial of the application shall take, (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part).

2003)

19.24.050 Effect on other laws; Sending area parcels under moratorium on the conversion
of forest land to other use.

A. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as allowing a use that is not otherwise
permitted by applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations, codes and ordinances.

B. Sending and receiving site parcels subject to a forest practices moratorium pursuant
to Title 76 RCW on conversions of forestland to other uses shall not be eligible to
transfer or receive development rights during the term of the moratorium. (Ord. 752 § 2
Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.055 Creation of TDR bank.

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 6 of 19

- Deleted: T

4 —

| Deleted: an arca will be designated a
| treasured place without further council

| confirmation of its continuing treasured
| place status




A. There is created a TDR bank within the TDR program. The city administrator shall
include information regarding TDR bank issued DRCs (city DRCs) in the TDR program
database.

B. The TDR bank may buy, sell, and issue DRCs. Any monies generated from the sale
of DRCs from the TDR bank, shall only be used to purchase TDR sending area parcels,
to purchase DRCs already issued for TDR sending areas, or to develop, preserve or
enhance properties acquired by the city pursuant to the TDR program.

C. The TDR bank shall initially have one thousand city DRCs which will be identified
in the TDR program database as city DRCs. City DRCs shall immediately be transferred
to the receiving site upon purchase from the TDR bank. Any DRCs that are otherwise
purchased by the TDR bank from a property identified as a TDR sending area, shall only
be transferred to the receiving site in accordance with the provision of Section 19.24.100.

D. The TDR bank may not sell city DRCs unless all of the following conditions are met:

1. The city has received an application to buy city DRCs that sets forth the tax parcel
number of the intended receiving site, the number of city DRCs requested, the number of
DRCs already acquired for the intended receiving site, and the efforts made to acquire
DRCs from other property owners. The application must be signed by all owners of
record for the intended receiving site.

2. The applicant will pay all city costs associated with the purchase and sale of city
DRCs and in complying with the terms of this code section, whether or not a sale is
consummated, including, but not limited to notice costs, appraisal costs, and city staff
time. The city may require that the applicant deposit with the city an amount that is
estimated to cover the costs before the city processes the application.

3. The sales price must be at no less than the fair market value at the time of sale, as
determined by a qualified real estate appraiser hired by the city.

4. The city must first notify all property owners to which a FLN has been issued and that
have not sold their DRCs, that the city intends to sell a designated number of city DRCs
at the designated price, unless owners of property for which FLNs have been issued agree
to sell their DRCs on the same terms and conditions. If a property owner(s), within
fifteen days of being sent the notice, notifies the city administrator, in writing, that it will
sell its DRCs on the same terms and conditions, then the city will delay the sale of the
city DRCs for sixty days to allow the private sale to be consummated. If the sale is not
consummated within that time through no fault of the party seeking to buy the DRCs, or,
if the private sale is for fewer development credits than the buyer was seeking, then the
city may consummate the sale for the number of city DRCs necessary to provide the
number of credits sought by the buyer up to the number of available city DRCs.

5. In no event shall the city sell more DRCs than are in the TDR bank, nor more than the
sending site is eligible to receive.

6. Regardless of the number of city DRCs purchased the sending site may only develop
to the density authorized by development regulations and other city approvals.

E. DRCs acquired by the TDR bank, other than city DRCs, may be sold by the city
through a sealed bid process following the same procedures as required for calling for
bids on a public works project for which formal bids are required, except as expressly
modified herein. The terms of sale shall be cash, and a cashier's check in the amount of

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 7 0f 19




five percent of the bid amount must be included with the bid as a bid guarantee. The bid
must be irrevocable for sixty days from the bid date. The full purchase price must be paid
within ten days of bid award or the five percent bid guarantee is forfeited. The bid
guarantee of the unsuccessful bidders shall be returned after the full purchase price has
been paid. In addition, each owner of record, as determined by the county assessor’s
records, for each property within the city that has been officially designated as a TDR
sending site shall be mailed a copy of the call for bids, at the address appearing in the
county assessor's records, at least twenty-one calendar days before the intended sale date.
The city reserves the right to reject any and all bids or to only sell a portion of the
available TDRs that were offered. If two or more bids are for the same amount, and the
council determines that it will accept the bid, then the mayor, by random drawing
between the tied bids, shall select the winning bid.

F. The TDR bank shall be administered by the city administrator, subject to the terms
and conditions of the TDR program.

G. The TDR bank is authorized to place DRCs in trust, subject to the conditions set
forth in Black Diamond Municipal Code Section 19.24.065. (Ord. 767 § 1, 2004; Ord.
752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.060 Issuance of development right certificates, perfecting the right to sell.

A. Parcel owners receiving a final letter of notification may request a development right
certificate (DRC) from the city administrator. Upon receiving the request for a DRC, the
city administrator will calculate the number of development rights attached to the parcel
pursuant to the provisions of the TDR program.

B. A DRC certifies that a specific number of development rights are available for
severance from a parcel and authorizes the rights to be sold or transferred to an eligible
receiving site. The amount of development rights indicated in the DRC may be held by
the parcel owner for future sale and/or transfer if not applied to the TDR sending area
parcel. The DRC is valid for a period of five years following its issuance. However, the
five-year period shall be tolled commencing when the DRC holder submits a preliminary
plat application for a receiving site that is eligible for additional residential density in
accordance with the TDR program. The five-year period shall continue to be tolled until
the preliminary or final plat application is withdrawn or the city issues a final decision on
a final plat application or five years after preliminary plat approval, whichever is earlier.
Following the expiration of the five-year period, the DRC becomes void and the sending
area owner must apply for a new DRC to sell or transfer development rights from the
parcel. The number of development rights available for transfer may be recalculated at
any time after the DRCs term of validity has expired.

C. Development rights eligible for transfer remain with the parcel that contains the TDR
sending area until transferred to a receiving site. A DRC may be requested by successive
parcel owners if one is not issued to an earlier owner.

D. Requests for DRCs must include the following:

1. Name(s) and address(es) of the parcel owner(s) of the site;

2. Legal description and parcel numbers;

3. Copy of the parcel deed and title;

Ordinance 09-895
IDR revisions
Page 8 0of 19




4. Application fee in the amount set forth in the city of Black Diamond's fee resolution;

5. Title report confirming that applicant is the owner of the parcel and has unrestricted
legal right to transfer the development;

6. Mortgage and/or Lien Holder Subordination and Release. The mortgage and/or lien
holder must provide an acknowledgment that a conservation easement will be placed on
the parcel and that they agree to subordinate their interest in the parcel to the
conservation easement;

7. Acknowledgment of intent to grant to the city of Black Diamond a conservation
easement in a form provided by the city permanently restricting development uses to
those allowed by the remaining development rights attached to the parcel, if any, and
preserving the parcel's environmental/resource value;

8. A description of any changes in the parcel (development, dredging, clearing, etc.)
occurring since the final letter of notification was issued; and

9. Acknowledgement of intent to grant a fee simple deed to the parcel or a public trail
easement, if bonus development rights are requested.

E. Upon review and approval of the required documentation, and confirmation of the
remaining development rights, the city administrator will issue individual DRCs for each
eligible parcel for which an application is received. The certificate will cite the serial
numbers of each development right certified for sale or transfer to an eligible receiving
site. A notice of issuance of the DRC shall be recorded by the city with the King County
recorder’s office in order to provide notice that the certificate has been issued and shall
state the name of the DRC holder.

F. The city administrator will promptly notify DRC holders if the development rights
available for transfer under the DRC are to be modified by the Black Diamond City Code
after the term of validity has expired. Notification of modifications to the DRC is not
required for those DRCs that have already been applied to a receiving site.

G. A DRC must be surrendered if the TDR sending area parcel is developed using all or
a portion of the density included within the previously issued DRC. The development of
the TDR sending area parcel will not be approved until the DRC is surrendered. (Ord.
752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.065 DRCs held in trust by the TDR bank.

A. The city may authorize a DRC to be placed into trust with the TDR bank. A DRC
may only be placed into trust with the TDR bank if all of the following conditions are
met:

1. The city council has determined that the immediate removal of development rights
from a specified sending area prior to the time that they are transferred to a receiving area
will further the goals and purposes of the city comprehensive plan, the TDR program and
the 1996 Black Diamond urban growth area agreement;

2. A permanent conservation easement in a form approved by the city attorney, has been
recorded on the receiving area;

3. All of the receiving area property owners have signed a DRC trust agreement with the

city.

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions

Pace 9 0f 19




B. The provisions of Section 19.24.060 notwithstanding, the following special
conditions shall only apply to a DRC placed into trust with the TDR bank:

1. The DRCs shall be permanently removed from the receiving area as of the date they
are placed into trust;

2. The DRC shall not have an expiration date;

3. The DRC shall remain in trust until the DRC holder provides the city TDR bank
administrator with written notice that the DRC should be transferred to a specific
receiving area, and the designated receiving area is eligible to receive the development
rights identified in the DRC.

C. The TDR program database shall identify the trust status of DRCs held in trust by the
TDR bank. (Ord. 767 § 2, 2004)

19.24.070 Request for administrative appeal.

A. Parcel owners who dispute the number of development rights identified as available
for transfer from their parcel or the eligibility of the parcel for participation in the
program may submit a request for administrative appeal to the city council.

B. Requests for an administrative appeal must be filed with the city clerk within twenty-
one calendar days from the issuance of the DRC, from the receipt of the written denial of
eligibility for participation in the program, or from the date of any final action made
pursuant to the terms of the TDR Program for which an appeal is allowed.

C. The request for administrative appeal shall include the appeal fee set forth in the
city's fee resolution, and shall contain the following information: the name, address and
phone number of the property owner for the parcel(s) affected by the appeal, identify the
decision being appealed, the alleged error that is contained in the appealed decision, the
facts that are the basis for the appeal, the legal basis for the appeal, and the requested
relief. The appeal request must be signed by the owners of record for the affected parcel.

D. The city administrator will review each request for an administrative appeal and may
prepare a report assessing the eligibility of the parcel or the number of development
rights identified as available for transfer from the parcel. The city council will consider
the city administrator's recommendations and report, if applicable, and will issue a final
decision on the administrative appeal request after holding a closed record hearing. The
city council shall issue findings and a decision either denying the appeal or directing the
city administrator to issue a new or revised development right certificate or FLN. (Ord.
752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.080 Conservation easement and restrictive covenant.

A. In order to sever development rights from a TDR sending area parcel for transfer to a
receiving site, a conservation easement must be placed on the TDR sending area parcel
permanently restricting development of the site to the uses allowed by the remaining
development rights attached to the parcel, if any, and protecting/preserving the
environmental/resource values associated with the TDR sending area. The conservation
easement must be signed by all owners of record for the TDR sending area parcel and the
city of Black Diamond mayor or his/her designee and recorded with the county recorder's
office. If fee ownership is to be acquired, then a perpetual restrictive covenant shall be

Ordinance 09-895
IDR revisions
Page 10 of 19




placed on the property that restricts its future use to only the uses for which it was
acquired under the TDR program, in addition to the other restrictions set forth below for
conservation easements.

B. Conservation easements shall be on a form approved by the Black Diamond city
attorney and shall contain at a minimum the following basic provisions:

1. The uses of the TDR sending area shall be limited to uses that further the intent for
which the specific TDR sending area was designated as a sending area;

2. Future use of the TDR sending area parcel will be governed by zoning regulations in
effect at the time of development to the extent they are not inconsistent with the terms of
the conservation easement;

3. Restrictions are granted in favor of the city of Black Diamond and the residents and
property owners within the city and are enforceable by the city of Black Diamond and if
the city fails or refuses to enforce them that they can be enforced by any city resident or
owner of property within the city;

4. Restriction is granted in perpetuity, and shall bind existing and future parcel owners;

5. Unless specifically provided for, nothing in the restrictions shall be construed to
convey to the public a right of access or use of the parcel, and the owner of the parcel,
his/her heirs, successors and assigns shall retain exclusive right to such access or use
subject to the terms of the easement; and

6. If enforcement action is commenced then the substantially prevailing party shall be
entitled to their costs and attorneys fees incurred in the action.

C. At the point of transfer of TDRs from an eligible sending area, the conservation
easement must be recorded with the King County recorder's office, and a copy of the
recorded document filed with the city clerk.

D. The city's TDR program database must be amended to show that the development
rights have been removed from these parcels. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.090 Sale or transfer of right to acquire development rights.

The right to use the development rights specified in a DRC may be transferred to the
owner of record of any eligible receiving site for use on that receiving site, or a person
who has acquired the right to develop the receiving site. Provided, however, in order for a
person or entity to have the right to use any of the development rights specified in a DRC
he must be the DRC holder. If the city receives written notification from a DRC holder
that he has conveyed the right to use the development rights specified in the DRC, then
the city administrator, upon receipt of the notice and payment of the applicable transfer
fee as specified in the city fee schedule, will enter that data into the TDR program
database, change the name of the DRC holder to reflect the transfer, issue a written notice
to the new DRC holder and the former DRC holder that the TDR program database has
been updated to reflect the transfer, and record with the King County recorder's office
notification that the DRC holder has changed. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.100 Transfer and application of development rights to receiving sites.

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 11 of 19




A. The TDRs shall remain with the TDR sending area parcel until the receiving site
parcel is authorized to apply the TDRs pursuant to a final plat approval. All transfers
shall occur by a deed of transfer to the receiving site, the form of which shall be provided
by the city. The deed of transfer shall specify the number and source of development
rights sold or otherwise conveyed and the legal description of the receiving site. The deed
of transfer will be recorded simultaneously with the conservation easement for the TDR
sending area parcel.

B. The development rights may be used only on a receiving site(s) that is eligible for
additional residential density through the transfer of development rights in accordance
with the Black Diamond zoning regulations. The process for transferring and applying
TDRs to an eligible receiving site is as follows:

1. The DRC and a title report for the TDR sending area parcel shall be included with the
application for preliminary plat approval for subdivision or development of a receiving
site.

2. At such time as the receiving site owner submits an application for final plat
approval, the application shall be accompanied by an updated title report for the TDR
sending area parcel, a draft conservation easement and a draft deed of transfer, both of
which shall be in a form designated by the city.

3. The city administrator will review the conservation easement and deed of transfer to
ensure compliance with the TDR program and the updated title report to verify ownership
of the development rights.

4. As a condition of final plat approval the TDR sending area and receiving site owners
shall execute and record a deed of transfer and the sending area owner shall
simultaneously execute and record a conservation easement.

5. The conservation easement for the TDR sending area parcel and deed of transfer shall
be recorded with the King County recorder's office and a recorded copy filed with the
city clerk. The deed of transfer must comply with any other requirements imposed by law
on the conveyance of interest in real property.

6. The TDR sending area parcel and receiving site parcel owners shall be responsible for
all costs of recording.

C. The development density allowed on the receiving site parcel shall not exceed that
allowed by the zone in which the parcel is located.

D. If the preliminary plat application is denied or only a portion of the available TDRs
are permitted for use, the city will reissue the DRC indicating the remaining TDRs
available for sale or transfer. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.110 Density rights appurtenant to the land.

A. Subject to applicable federal and state laws, all TDRs shall be deemed to be
appurtenant to the TDR sending area until such rights are separated from the parcel by
the proper recording of a deed of transfer severing the development rights from the
parcel.

Ordinance 09-895

Page 12 0of 19



B. After a deed of transfer is executed and recorded, the density associated with the
deed of transfer becomes appurtenant to the receiving site. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part),
2003)

19.24.120 Program evaluation.

A. The city shall review the TDR program or any components thereof within three years
after adoption and then as deemed necessary by the city, making a written report and
recommendations to the city council on the following matters:

1. Program Utilization. The use of the program, including the number of and distribution
of all sales, transfers, and purchases of development rights during the reporting period;

2. Program Functioning. The functioning of the program itself, including such issues as

administration, cost, application processing, monitoring, andmaintaining an appropriate .

balance between the number of sending and receiving areag;and
3. Program Effectiveness. The effectiveness of the program in meeting its land
preservation goals. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.130 Stewardship program.

A. Strategic Purchase Program.

1. The city of Black Diamond may elect to purchase and hold development rights which
have been designated as TDR sending areas when the purchase will significantly further
the objectives of Black Diamond's comprehensive plan. In determining whether to
purchase development rights from an eligible parcel, the council will consider the
availability of adequate funds and the extent to which the purchase is necessary for:

a. The protection of parcel which is of significant ecological importance;

b. The protection of parcel which is contiguous to, or buffers, publicly owned or
managed conservation lands;

c. The transfer of development rights to a residential development project would further
a compelling public need such as affordable housing;

d. The demonstration of a significant and positive example of the TDR program in
operation;

e. The enhancement or improvement of the parcel's environmental, resource, or
recreational values (e.g., habitat restoration) and is consistent with the terms of the
restriction on the deed to the parcel; or

f. Otherwise furthering the goals of the city of Black Diamond's comprehensive plan.

2. In selecting between two equally beneficial properties, the city may also consider
additional public policy and equity concerns relative to the sale of development rights to
the city. Notwithstanding the availability of funds and eligible parcel, the strategic
purchase program is solely discretionary by the city council and it may elect to delay or
decline the purchase of development rights.

B. Fee Ownership.

1. The principal interest of the city of Black Diamond is to ensure that quality open
space lands are preserved and subsequently stewarded in a manner that maintains and
enhances their open space values. There may be some instances where there is a public

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 13 0of 19

Deleted: etc. Validity of

| Deleted: existing

" | Deleted: based on updated

| information.




interest in holding a fee interest in the land, for continued stewardship and protection of
the land. In these instances, either fee simple or less-than-fee parcel interests may be
acquired for eligible lands. Whether a fee interest is acquired will depend on a variety of
considerations including:

a. The degree to which the land will require management or stewardship and the
resources available to conduct the necessary activities;

b. Whether public access is necessary or beneficial;

c. The scope of parcel interests the land owner/donor has offered; or

d. The administrative, monitoring and enforcement issues associated with the interest to
be acquired and the resources available to address the issues.

C. Stewardship/Ownership Review.

1. The city of Black Diamond will include as part of its review of the potential
acquisition of transferable development rights or a fee parcel interest an assessment of
whether the city or a non-profit organization would be the optimal owner or steward of
the acquired parcel interests over the long term. The principal concern regarding the
ownership of the parcel is to ensure the preserved lands are cared for in a manner that
maintains and enhances their open space values. If the city of Black Diamond concludes
another organization would be the preferable owner of the development rights, it may
seek that organization's cooperation and involvement during negotiations, or, if
appropriate, transfer the newly acquired interests to that organization at some later date.
The city will consider:

a. The preferences of the donor or seller;

b. Maintenance and stewardship costs;

c. The entity that is best equipped to provide maintenance and stewardship; or

d. The jurisdiction in which the parcel is located; and

e. The entity that can provide for appropriate public access.

2. No transfer will be authorized until the city attorney certifies that to do so would not
be an unconstitutional gift of public funds. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.140 Establishing additional TDR sending areas.

The TDR program encourages preservation of targeted open space land by enabling
owners of designated TDR sending area parcels to transfer the development rights from
TDR sending areas to permissible TDR receiving areas. The initial TDR sending areas _.---| Deleted: the land
are set forth on the TDR program map as adopted. The city may consider designation of
additional sites for preservation by designating them as TDR sending areas_after careful
evaluation to ensure an appropriate balance will continue to exist between the number of ...-{ Deleted: adequate
sending and receiving areas to ensure the program will function effectively, The { Deleted: receiving areas for these
following procedures and processes apply to the designation of additional TDR sending | additionsl deyelopmest vighits
areas. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.150 Lands eligible for TDR sending area designation.

Ordinance 09-895
[DR revisions

Page 14 of 19




Public benefit lands are eligible for TDR sending area designation by the city in
accordance with the criteria and procedures set forth below. Eligible parcels for sending
area designation must be at least one-fourth acre in size and contain one or more of the
following features, as defined in the city's comprehensive plan:

A. Category I Wetlands.

1. Documented habitat for endangered or threatened fish or animal species or for
potentially extirpated plant species recognized by state or federal agencies;

2. High quality native wetland communities, including documented category I or II
quality natural heritage wetland sites and sites which qualify as a category I or II quality
natural heritage wetland;

3. High quality, regionally rare wetland communities with irreplaceable ecological
functions, including sphagnum bogs and fens, estuarine, wetlands, or mature forested
swamps; or

4. Wetlands of Exceptional Local Significance. The criteria for such a designation shall
be developed and adopted by the local jurisdiction under appropriate public review and
administrative appeal procedures. The criteria may include, but not be limited to, rarity,
groundwater recharge areas, significant habitats, unique educational sites or other specific
functional values within a watershed or other regional boundary.

B. Freshwater Bodies.

1. High Priority Freshwater Bodies. For those freshwater sites which meet any of the
following criteria, property is of high priority for acquisition which, by itself or in
conjunction with other offered or already preserved property, includes a material portion
of a category I or II wetland and a buffer in accordance with chapter 19.12 and the
wetland boundary of the contained portion:

a. Either the presence of species proposed or listed as endangered or threatened or which
receives some other legal protection, or the presence of critical or outstanding actual
habitat for those species;

b. Wetlands with forty percent to sixty percent coverage by permanent open water in
dispersed patches with two or more subclasses of vegetation;

c. Wetlands equal to or greater than ten acres in size and having three or more wetland
classes, one of which is open water; or

d. The presence of plant associations of infrequent occurrence.

2. Priority Freshwater Bodies. For those freshwater sites which meet any of the
following criteria, property is eligible which by itself or in conjunction with other offered
or already preserved property includes an entire freshwater site or category I or II wetland
along with a buffer of fifty feet beyond the wetland boundary.

a. Wetlands greater than one acre in size;

b. Wetlands equal to or less than one acre in size that have three or more wetland
classes;

c. Wetlands equal to or less than one acre in size that have a forested wetland class or
subclasses; or

d. The presence of heron rookeries or raptor nesting sites.

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 15 0f 19




C. Wildlife Corridors. Eligible wildlife corridors should have high species abundance
and diversity, or provide a critical wildlife access link between two or more important
wildlife areas, or contain species listed as threatened, rare or endangered.

D. Stream and Small Creek Corridors. Lands under this category include property which
either by itself or in conjunction with other offered or already preserved property is
contiguous with the established high water mark of a type 1 or type 2 streams. Property
may extend up to five hundred feet from the center of the stream channel or up to two
hundred feet in elevation above the channel in order to buffer the stream with sufficient
vegetative cover and runoff protection.

E. Historic Landmarks/Archaeological Sites. Historic and archaeological lands are those
which constitute, or upon which is situated, a historical landmark formally listed or
registered by the county or city for local regulatory protection.

F. Open Space Lands. Open spaces lands are those that contain environmentally
sensitive areas and buffers. In addition, open space lands include those parcels adjacent to
environmentally sensitive areas that also provide community valued open space and
treasured areas, urban/rural bufters, in-city urban separators, public and private parks and
recreation and community facilities.

G. Urban Wildlife Pocket. Lands under this category provide some open space and
wildlife habitat in the urban setting. These naturally vegetative lands are found in densely
configured communities where an undeveloped lot is the exception in the area. Although
single lots may be eligible as an urban wildlife pocket, a higher priority will be given to
those lands offered in conjunction with other offered or already preserved properties or
where there exists a high probability of other properties that may be preserved in the
vicinity. The natural and wildlife amenities of such lands should be reasonably certain to
remain unaffected over the foreseeable future.

H. Critical Fish and Wildlife Habitat Areas. Lands under this category should provide
high quality habitat and support a diversity and abundance of wildlife. High quality fish
and wildlife habitat areas also tend to protect rare, unique, or threatened habitat.

I. Endangered, Threatened, or Sensitive Species Habitat. Lands under this category have
been identified by the Washington State Department of Wildlife as areas with threatened
or endangered species, or species of special concern.

J. Trails. Lands under this category should contribute to the completion of trails
designed and scheduled for eventual right-of-way acquisition or surface preparation.
These trails should provide public access between and through open spaces in the city,
serving bicyclists, pedestrians, equestrians or other appropriate users. (Note: Public
access makes this land category suitable for fee acquisition.)

K. Greenways. Lands under this category should lie within a greenway or greenbelt,
which are land areas that are naturally vegetated, provide public access to and linkages
between open space resources.

L. Viewpoints and Vistas. Vista properties are parcels of land which offer sweeping
views of lakes, mountains, valleys, rivers, streams, historic structures, farms and other
rural landscapes, or landmarks. The quality of a view from a vista property should be
reasonably certain to remain unaffected over the foreseeable future. For instance, a
potential property may not be of high priority under this particular land type if

Ordinance 09-895
IDR revisions
Page 16 of 19




development is likely to occur that would materially diminish the quality of the view
from the vista property.

M. Parklands. Property in its natural state, open to the public and located in an urban
growth area, which will enhance opportunities for passive recreational needs, as
determined at the time of land classification.

N. Parksites and Active Recreation Sites. Property which has been identified as land
which the city, school district, other municipal corporation or other qualified not-for-
profit land conservation organization may, at a future date, want to purchase as park,
recreation, or open space parkland. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.155 Lands not eligible for TDR sending area designation.

Anv lands identified under section 19.24.150 that are located within identified receiving
areas shall not be eligible for designation as TDR sending areas.

19.24.160 Application and designation process for TDR sending areas.

A. Applications. Applications requesting inclusion of public benefit lands into the TDR
program as a TDR sending area shall be submitted to the city administrator. Applications
shall be completed on forms supplied by the city and shall include the following
information:

1. Name(s) and address(es) of each parcel owner(s);

2. Legal description and parcel number of the parcel;

3. Description of the parcel, to include size, existing zoning, site characteristics, current
use and the resources and/or features that may be considered in evaluating the property's
eligibility as a qualifying land type under Section 19.24.030;

4. Copy of the parcel deed and title;

5. Expected area or population to benefit from the preservation of the parcel;

6. Proposed property interest to be conveyed to the city; and

7. Statement(s) and or letter(s), if any, evidencing community support of the property's
designation for inclusion into the TDR program.

8. Signed by all owners of record.

B. City Review. Applications will be screened by the city administrator or designee to
determine eligibility and to evaluate each application according to the listed criteria. The
city administrator may conduct an inspection of the nominated property and may also
require the submission of additional information necessary to evaluate the property's
resources/features. The city administrator will provide to the planning commission a
report that sets forth: 1) whether the property meets the requisite criteria for sending area
designation, and 2) whether its designations as a TDR sending area will impair in any
appreciable degree the operation of the TDR program; and 3) what bonus density, if any,
should be credited to the TDR sending area.

C. Planning Commission Review and Recommendation. The city administrator will
present his/her analysis and recommendations to the Black Diamond planning
commission for review and consideration. The commission will consider the city
administrator's report and submit its recommendation to the Black Diamond city council

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 17 of 19




as to whether or not the area should be designated as a TDR sending area, and whether
the area should be considered for bonus density.

D. City Council Action. The city council will hold a public hearing, consider the
planning commission's recommendation and the city administrator's report, and will issue
a final decision on the application for TDR sending area designation. The city council
may deny the application or approve the application and direct the city administrator to
issue a final letter of notification. Parcels that are approved for TDR sending area
designation are subject to the city's TDR program procedures for transfer of development
rights, including the DRC process. As a condition of granting TDR sending area status,
the city may require either a fee transfer or grant of conservation easement within the
discretion of the city council. The council shall also determine whether bonus density
should be allowed. The designation of a TDR sending area, a treasured place, and the
appropriate density bonus are legislative actions. (Ord. 752 § 2 Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.170 Public benefit land evaluation criteria.

The following evaluation criteria are designed to assist the city's review and assessment
of designating additional properties as TDR sending areas:

A. Significant Land Resource. The property supports multiple environmental, resource
or recreational purposes by materially satisfying one or more of the definitions of eligible
land types.

B. Educational or Recreational Value. The property promotes conservation principles by
example or by offering educational opportunities or enhancing recreational opportunities.
C. Size of Parcel. The size of the property is significant to the environmental, resource
or recreational value and/or public benefit provided by the property in preserving or

defining the character of the city.

D. Threat to Property. The property's open space value is substantially threatened.
Evidence of substantial threat could include:

1. There is development activity nearby the parcel;

2. The property is presently listed for sale;

3. Development permits have been submitted on the property;

4. There is commercial development within the vicinity of the property; or

5. Preservation assistance offered by another entity is available for a limited time,
including matching funds, contributions of conservation easements or other property
interests, or sale at less than full value.

E. Community Support. The community supports designation of the property as a TDR
sending area. The following support will be recognized:

1. Letters supporting not only the preservation of the property, but the intended
permanent open space or resource objectives for the property if it is preserved;

2. Resolution of support by an established citizens organization or community land
trust; or

3. Endorsement by other agencies or local governments.

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions

Page 18 of 19




F. Geographic Distribution. The property is located in an area where the environmental,
resource or recreational value is scarce and the preservation of any land would provide a
significant benefit.

G. TDR Program Functionality. Designating the parcel as a TDR sending area will not
impair in any appreciable degree the functionality of the TDR program. (Ord. 752 § 2
Exh. 1 (part), 2003)

19.24.175 Establishing additional TDR receiving areas.
The mavor, or his or her designee, shall periodically review the city’s official TDR map

and TDR database to determine whether the number of TDR receiving areas needs
adjustment to ensure the TDR program continues to function effectivelv. If, based on this

review, it is determined that additional TDR receiving areas are necessary. the mavor or
his or her designee shall designate areas that shall be proposed as additional TDR
receiving areas and present this proposal to the Planning Commission. The Planning
Commission shall conduct a public hearing in which the proposal shall be considered.
The Planning Commission shall then decide whether to recommend or oppose the
proposal. or to recommend the proposal with suggested modifications. and forward this
decision to the City Council. The City Council shall then make the final decision on
whether the proposal is approved. denied. or approved with modifications,

Ordinance 09-895
TDR revisions
Page 19 of 19

= [Comment [TG1]:

LU

| Deleted: designate additional or the
elimination of receiving areas in order to
ensure an adequate balance within the

3 L TDR Program

{ Deleted: .

—




CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond
Post Office Box 599
AGENDABILL Black Diamond, WA 98010

ITEM INFORMATION

SUBJECT: Agenda Date: April 2, 2009 AB09-030
Resolution No. 09-587, authorizing Department/Committee/Individual Created | Reviewed
execution of Professional Services Mayor Howard Botts

Agreement with Beckwith City Administrator —-Gwen Voelpel

Consulting Group Asst. City Attorney —Tom Guilfoil X

City Clerk — Brenda L. Streepy

Finance — May Miller

Public Works — Dan Dal Santo

Cost Impact: $19,120 Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson

Fund Source: REET Funds Police —

Timeline: Begin contract immediately and Court — Kaaren Woods

complete by June 2009. Natural Resources/Parks — Aaron Nix X

Attachments: Resolution No. 09-587 with appendices, Professional Services Agreement, Bids

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

In order to help staff compete for granting opportunities, help the council make decisions as it
pertains to the City’s Transfer of Development Rights (TDR) program and general priority
setting, staff is seeking approval of a contract with Beckwith Consulting Group in the
development of a non-motorized transportation and park trail plan.

City staff solicited consulting services from the small works roster. Two firms submitted scopes
of work and staff proposes to accept the low bid, offered by Beckwith Consulting Group, not to
exceed $19,120. Consistent with the City approved Capital Improvement Program, Real Estate
Excise Tax (REET) monies will be utilized in order to complete the plan.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Staff reviewed scopes of work with the Parks
Committee on March 23, 2009 and obtained approval from the committee to bring this contract forward
for acceptance.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution No. 09-587, accepting
the bid from Beckwith Consulting Group, not to exceed $19,120 and
authorizing the Mayor to execute a contract for the development of a non-
motorized transportation and park trail plan.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

April 2, 2009




RESOLUTION NO. 09-587

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
ACCEPTING THE BID FROM BECKWITH CONSULTING
GROUP, NOT TO EXCEED $19,120.00 AND AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR THE
DEVELOPMENT OF A NON-MOTORIZED
TRANSPORTATION AND PARK TRAIL PLAN

WHEREAS, the City is need of planning services in the development of a non-motorized
transportation and parks trail plan in order to prioritize the development of this system
throughout the City of Black Diamond; and

WHEREAS, the development of the non-motorized transportation and parks trail plan
has been budgeted utilizing Real Estate Excise Tax money as a component to fulfilling
the approved Capital Improvement Program project identified as trail development;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Beckwith Consulting Group was the low bidder from a small works
solicitation for bids on the development of a non-motorized transportation and parks trail
plan.

Section 2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Beckwith
Consulting Group, to perform the work described within the scope of work contained in
Appendix A.

Section 3. The amount of this contract shall not exceed $19,120.00 including a
$790.00 contingency for any overruns and applicable sales tax as identified in Appendix
B.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 2"° DAY OF APRIL, 2009.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Howard Botts, Mayor

Attest:

Brenda L. Streepy, City Clerk



Appendix A

Scope of Work

1: Conduct retreat with Trail Advisory Committee (TAC)

We will conduct a workshop or retreat with you, your staff, your Trails Advisory Committee (TAC) and
any others you deem appropriate to review the scope, tasks of work, time schedule, and other
particulars of the proposed work program before finalizing your process. This would provide your
participants an opportunity to review and strategize about:

= a vision - concerning the context, scope, and particulars of your proposed non-motorized
transportation and park trail planning process,

= an assessment - of your current city comprehensive plan, park element plan, Lake Sawyer
Regional Park charrette and plan, as well as other jurisdiction or development plans and projects
to date in light of the vision statement above, and

= identify who and how to involve - trail user and interest groups, homeowner associations,
Enumclaw School District, Metro Transit, and other agency jurisdictions like Auburn, Kent, King
County, Washington State Parks & Recreation Commission, Washington State Department of Fish &
Wildlife, Natural Resources, WSDOT, and others m in your planning process, as well as the public-
at-large.

Your participants will review the proposed process and identify issues and concerns to be resolved
during the course of work. Based on the results of the retreat, we will finalize the proposed scope,
tasks, schedules, products, and other particulars with you.

Deliverable - a validated consultant services agreement with detailed scope of work and issues
identification.

2: Review scope/issues with Planning Commission and City Council

Based on the results of task 1, we will review your proposed scope, tasks, schedules, products, and
other particulars with your Planning Commission and City Council during workshop sessions. Your
workshop participants will review the proposed process and identify issues and concerns to be
resolved during the course of work.

Webpage - following the workshops, we will post materials on the planning process, schedule,
meeting locations, and other particulars on a link to your webpage on a continuous basis throughout
the project. We will add information developed during the process and provide for a downloading of
proposals, documents, and other particulars to increase public information and participation
opportunities.

Deliverable - kick-off meeting with the participants, advisory groups, public agencies, and user
organizations and a discussion and identification of the concerns, issues, objectives, and other
particulars to be considered during the planning process.

Supply, demand, and financial assessments

3: Inventory/evaluate existing system

We will inventory and compile a summary description, appropriate supporting graphics, and indexed
maps of all existing and programmed non-motorized transportation and park trails systems within
the Black Diamond Urban Growth Area Agreement (BDUGAA). We will describe the history,
destinations, development condition, master plan status, improvements program, development
capabilities, volumes, accident history, safety hazards, and other relevant features of each non-
motorized transport and parks trails system mode including:

= walking and hiking trails - including Black Diamond Elementary School and neighborhood
pathways and sidewalks, designated road shoulders, park walking trails, off-road trails and
known walking routes, and trailheads,




=  on and off-road biking trails - including designated lanes, shoulders, and roadways of known
bicycle touring routes along SR-169, Black Diamond Road, and Green River Gorge Road, school
and neighborhood commute routes, off-road trails and known cycling routes, and trailhead or
service locations, and

=  Pedestrian streetscape systems - including business district pathways, boardwalks, and sidewalk
extensions, wayfinding signage, gateway improvements, artworks, and transit connections.

Deliverable - an inventory of non-motorized transportation and park trails, routes, destinations,
trailheads or service sites determining the existing level-of-service (ELOS) for each non-motorized
transport or park trails modal category.

4: Inventory/evaluate opportunities

We will utilize the mapping base and field evaluations to analyze existing and potential destinations,
routes, properties, sites or other features that may provide non-motorized transportation and park
trails opportunities including:

= environments - scenic, historic, natural areas, viewpoints, facilities, and corridors of interest to
non-motorized transportation and park trails system users within designated King County and
Black Diamond’s designated Ravensdale Ridge and Creek Corridor open space and nature
conservancy’s including Plum Creek’s dedications,

= destinations - Black Diamond Elementary School, Lake Sawyer and other city and county parks,
public facilities, historical landmarks, business districts, and other commuter or recreational
activity centers,

= transit links - Metro bus routes, stops, and park-n-ride lots,

= roadways - including public and private right-of-way, pavement width and condition, operating
speeds, traffic and transit volumes, transit stops and park-n-ride lots, sight lines, shoulder
conditions and capabilities, destinations, commute potentials, accident histories, and safety
conditions particularly along SR-169, Black Diamond Road, Green River Gorge Road, and the
proposed future road network involving Pipeline Road, Annexation Road, North and South
Connector Roads,

= utility corridors - including former Northern Pacific Railroad track alignment through Black
Diamond, natural gas, power line, and flood control or dike improvement ownership and
easements,

= properties - owned by the city, county, state, and federal departments of highway, fisheries,
wildlife, ecology, natural resources, and others including homeowner associations and large
private landholders such as Plum Creek, and

=  User concentrations - neighborhoods, housing developments, transit transfer stations, and
business district locations likely to generate substantial volumes of potential non-motorized
transportation and park trail system users.

Deliverable - an analysis of the strategic value of each of the above areas for potential non-motorized
transport system and park trail developments.

5: Project non-motorized transportation and parks trails system demands

We will project non-motorized transportation and park trail system requirements using a combination
of methodologies developed from the Washington State Resource Conservation Office (RCO - formerly
the Interagency Board for Outdoor Recreation (IAC)) Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation
Plan (SCORP) participation model and user trends. Using our participation model and a level-of-
service (LOS) standard, we will:

= analyze economic, demographic, and land use projections - including estimates of population
by age groups over the next 20-year period as Black Diamond increases in population to a
projected 16,980 persons,

= establish existing level-of-service (ELOS) standards - and project non-motorized transportation
and park trail demand in destination and route requirements terms,

= subtract existing and programmed improvements - to determine system needs, and

= Project the acquisition, design, construction, and other costs - involved in developing and
maintaining non-motorized transportation and park trail system improvements necessary to
resolve unmet demands.

Deliverable - a comparison of LOS standards with results we have achieved for other jurisdictions
including Island, Kitsap, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties, Vashon Island, and University Place, Gig
Harbor, Wenatchee, and SeaTac cities, among others.



6: Assess financial conditions/prospects
We will analyze your financial prospects in regards to:

= present and probable trends - in general fund revenues, expenditure patterns, capital
improvement program requirements, potential bonded debt capacity, and voter referendum
issues,

= any supplemental funding allocations - from motor vehicle gas and excise tax funds, real estate
excise tax, user fee revenues, enterprise accounts, state and federal grants, obligation bonds, and
special revenue funds including your transfer development rights (TDR) program,

= applicability of other funding approaches and prospects - including special recreation or
transportation service areas, special use agreements, joint venture developments, land leases,
self-help contract agreements, and environmental impact mitigation strategies, and

= Present and potential revenue sharing opportunities - that could be provided under the
transportation and park growth impact fee mitigation allowed in the Washington State Growth
Management Act (GMA).

Deliverable - an analysis of past revenue and expenditure patterns for non-motorized transportation
and park trail projects and a projection of possible funding sources for future system developments.

7: Review inventory assessments with the Trails Advisory Committee (TAC)

We will review the implications of the non-motorized transportation and park trail system supply,
opportunity, intercept surveys, and financial projections during workshop review sessions with you,
your staff, your Trails Advisory Committee (TAC), and any other parties you deem appropriate.

Deliverable - the clarification by workshop participants of policy issues and questions to be resolved in
following tasks of work.

Goal and strategy development

8: Conduct public planning/design charrette

We will conduct a workshop or design charrette with you, your staff, your Trails Advisory Committee,
Planning Commission, Enumclaw School District, Friends of Lake Sawyer, user group organizations,
homeowner associations, and other interested parties to develop preliminary planning and design
solutions.

We will conduct the session as a brainstorming workshop (charrette), where the participants will
jointly create (and we illustrate) as many ideas as possible for every non-motorized transportation
and park trail mode from water trails to horse, hike, bike, and streetscape option. We will develop
these initial charrettes without critical evaluation until the participants are satisfied that all possible
ideas have been explored.

We will then have the participants evaluate every proposal listing negative and positive features.
Where appropriate, we may refine, expand, or combine proposals as a means of increasing positive
and decreasing negative features. We will continue the iterative charrettes until the participants are
satisfied that every idea has been fully evaluated.

We will then poll the group to determine the level of support for each proposal and thereby which
concepts we further develop into plan elements.

Deliverable - one-of-a-kind workshop exhibits created from the charrettes. A survey determining
participants and issues and a report describing workshop comments and implications for each non-
motorized transportation and park trail plan element.

9: Draft goals and strategies
Based on the results of the charrettes in task 9, we will develop detailed non-motorized
transportation and park trail system planning objectives to include:

Goals

= determination of - non-motorized transportation and park trail modal categories,

= service development priorities - for specific destinations, routes, and sites,

= System development priorities - by modal type and service area.

Strategies

= city role/responsibility options - by modal category, by service area, by route or site for
acquisition and development, for maintenance and operations,




= existing and proposed level-of-service (ELOS/PLOS) standards - to be provided non-motorized
and park trail modal developments along with specific service area and site priorities,

* funding strategies - for each service area, mode, and route including concepts that allocate
monies acquired from GMA growth impact fees and services, and

=  Environmental mitigation strategies - to be used to resolve development impacts along and
between trail corridors.

Deliverable - measurable goals and strategies reviewed with and agreed upon by the participating
user groups, agencies, and other parties.

10: Select strategy options with Trails Advisory Committee

We will review the goal statements and strategy options during workshop review sessions with you,
your staff, your Trails Advisory Committee and/or Planning Commission, and other parties you deem
appropriate.

Deliverable - resolution of final goal statements and select strategy approaches to be used in the plan's
development and implementation.

Development plan elements

11: Create development plan elements

Based on the results of tasks 9-12, we will develop 20-year comprehensive non-motorized
transportation and park trail system plan elements to include descriptive graphics, overlay maps,
illustrative designs, trail design standards, site plans, construction and maintenance/repair cost
estimates, and texts of:

=  walking and hiking trails - identifying proposed Black Diamond Elementary School and
neighborhood pathways and sidewalks, improved road shoulders, park walking trail systems, off-
road hiking trails, shoreline and tideland trails, and trailhead improvements,

= on and off-road biking trails - identifying proposed lane and roadway shoulder improvements,
signed bicycle touring routes, school and neighborhood commute routes, off-road trails, BMX and
mountain bike courses, and trailhead improvements along SR-169, Black Diamond Road, Green
River Gorge Road, and the proposed future road network,

= pedestrian streetscape systems - identifying proposed business district pathways, boardwalks,
and sidewalk extensions, gateway, and wayfinding signage improvements,

= transit connections - identifying Metro bus stops, storage areas, and services,

= safety and operating programs element - defining codes of conduct, safety instruction
programs, emergency call and response provisions, trailhead services, and security,

* maintenance and operations plan - identifying required staff, equipment, yards and buildings
necessary to provide supporting maintenance and administration requirements to sustain the
trails over their expected replacement and repair life cycle, and

=  Benefits assessment - indicating the cost/benefit returns of the non-motorized and park trail
system and proposed development plan elements to the transportation and park systems at large.

Deliverable - non-motorized transportation and park trail plan elements organized into a format
conforming to requirements for a GMA/SEPA plan element along with illustrative sketches and map
overlays.

12: Select preferred strategy/plan elements with Trails Advisory Committee

Based on the results of the open house in task 14, we will review the non-motorized transportation
and park trail plan elements with you, your staff, the Trails Advisory Committee and/or Planning
Commission, and any other parties you deem appropriate at workshop review sessions.

Deliverable - selection of preferred non-motorized transportation and park trail system strategy
options and plan elements to include final land acquisition, design, developments, and priorities.

13: Validate preferred strategy/plan elements with Planning Commission and City Council

We will review the non-motorized transportation and park trail plan elements with your Planning
Commission and City Council at a workshop review session. Your workshop participants will review
and validate final plan contents.

Deliverable - validation by Planning Commission and City Council of preferred non-motorized
transportation and park trail system strategy options and plan elements to include final land
acquisition, design, and development projects and priorities.



Implementation program

14: Create implementation program/CFP
Based on the results of task 16, we will develop a detailed non-motorized transportation and park
trail implementation program to include:

=  project priority rating system - defining project implementation priorities accounting for
accident and safety deficiencies, safe school walk routes, high volume commuter routes and
linkages, visible public interest, and other factors,

=  6/20-year capital facilities program (CFP) - defining existing and proposed level-of-service
(ELOS/PLOS) and trail design standards with estimated project acquisition, design, development,
operation, and maintenance as well as cyclical replacement and repair costs and possible
funding sources or methods for the city and joint venture partners,

= interagency agreements - including draft terms and understandings between the city and other
possible non-motorized transportation and park trail system joint venture program or project
partners,

» a legislative package - outlining legislations and authorizations (along with model ordinances)
necessary to impose growth impact fee assessment or set-aside options, mitigate development
impacts, define non-motorized transportation and park trail plan GIS overlay maps, obtain
multiple use land agreements, and other strategies of the preferred plan.

Deliverable - draft contents of the non-motorized transportation and park trail implementation
program conforming to GMA/SEPA requirements.

15: Design/conduct a mail-out/mail-back or internet survey

Using the results of task 18, we will design a mail-out/mail-back survey or internet survey to be
conducted of registered city voters about final non-motorized transportation and park trail system
development and implementation issues. We will mail background materials and a copy of the survey
to each household within the controlled sample group - or post the survey on your website for on-line
completion and collation. The survey may include questions about:

= desires - for specific non-motorized transportation and park trail projects including possible
methods of financing,

= approvals and priorities - for special project proposals including property acquisitions and
illustrative route, trail, and trailhead site design concepts,

= financing preferences and priorities - including methods and amounts of proposed general and
transportation fund allocations, GMA growth impact fees, general obligation bonds, and other
user fees, and

=  Characteristics - including place and length of residence, age, and household status.

Deliverable - a representative method of determining public support for various non-motorized
transportation and park trail plan concepts and strategies, particularly aspects requiring public
implementation for your city officials to use during subsequent plan review and adoption proceedings.

Note - we have had considerable success using the survey method to determine resident preferences for
an open space and trails plan for Skagit County, the restoration of the Olympic Brewery complex for a
park plan for Tumwater, a park and recreation program for Mount Vernon, and financing and impact
fee options for Bainbridge Island, among others. The surveys provided elected officials clear indications
of the priorities and degree of support residents had for specific plan features and implementation
program particulars.

16: Select implementation program/CFP with Trails Advisory Committee
We will review implementation program particulars and the mail-out/mail-back or internet survey
results during workshop review sessions with you, your staff, and your Trails Advisory Committee
and/or Planning Commission, and any other parties you deem appropriate.

Deliverable - selection of preferred capital facility projects, schedules, revenue sources, growth impact
fee structure, and other particulars.

Review/adoption process

17: Edit/publish plan/implementation/CFP program documents




We will compile and edit camera-ready copy of the following non-motorized transportation and park
trail plan documents:

=  PowerPoint - for public presentations and display,

= plan brochure - with plan and illustrative graphics on one side, inventory and implementation
particulars on the other to be used as a future non-motorized transportation and park trail system
plan handout following plan adoption,

= narrative report - to include a summarization of the non-motorized transportation and park trail
system development plan and implementation chapters, and

= Technical appendix - to include the results of all tasks of the work program, workshops, public
open houses, and other participation events with a SEPA checklist of major impacts and
mitigation.

Deliverable - disk copies of all text, tables, maps, and graphics in formats suitable to your software
requirements for you to publish and distribute the plan documents.

18: Present plan/implementation program/CFP to Planning Commission and City Council

We will assist you, your staff, and your Trails Advisory Committee in the presentation and discussion
of the contents of the plan, implementation program, public open houses, mail-out/mail-back or
internet survey, and other recommendations with the Planning Commission and City Council.

Deliverable - Planning Commission and City Council public hearings and adoption of the non-
motorized transportation and park trail plan as an element of your city’s comprehensive plan in
accordance with GMA requirements.



Appendix B

12 March
Gantt Chart 2009

Black Diamond - Non-Motorized Transportation & Park Trail Plan

Team Leader/Project Planner - Tom Beckwith FAICP
Landscape Architect - Terry Reckord ASLA

Engineer - Mike Read PE

| Opinion Surveyor - GMA Research Corporation

I
| | weeks
I

|
[
[
[
[
||

1 Conduct retreat w/TAC X X
X

11 11 1 1 prof labor mtls/ total
Initiate project | 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 012 3 4 5 hrs cost cost cost
4 $340 $0 $340
2 Review scope w/City Council 2 $170 $0 $170
Inventory/assess opportunities
3 Inventory/evaluate existing system X X X 20  $1,400 $0 $1,400
4 Inventory/evaluate opportunities X X X 24  $1,680 $0 $1,680
5 Project demands/needs X 8 $680 $0 $680
6 Assess financial conditions/prospects X 12 $1,020 $0 $1,020
7 Review findings w/TAC X X X 6 $510 $50 $560
Define goals/strategies
8 Conduct planning/design charrette X X X 10 $850 $150 $1,000
9 Draft strategies and goals X X X 6 $510 $0 $510
10 Select strategies w/TAC X X X 2 $170 $0 $170
Create plan elements
11 Create development plan elements X X X 48  $3,600 $0 $3,600
12 Select plan w/TAC X X X 6 $510 $0 $510
13 Validate plan w/City Council X 2 $170 $50 $220
Develop implementation program
14 Create implementation/CFP X X X 36  $3,060 $0 $3,060
15 Design/conduct mail/internet survey X X 16 $880 $0 $880
16 Select implement/CFP w/TAC X X X 6 $510 $0 $510




Review/adopt plan

17 Complile/edit plan/CFP documents X X X X H 24  $1,800 $0 $1,800
18 Present to PC/City Council X 2 $170 $50 $220
Subtotal 250 $18,910 $300  $18,330
Contingency 4% $790
Project budget $19.120

Assumptions by task
18 Assumes we will provide camera-ready and disk copies of all final documents and you will make all reproduction copies.

Hourly rates=$85-120/hr senior professionals, $65-85/hr professionals, $45-55/hr technical and $35-45/hr for support skills.




CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (the or this “Agreement”), for reference purposes
only, is dated April 2, 2009 and is entered into by and between

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON (the “City™)

24301 Roberts Drive

Black Diamond, WA 98010

Contact: Aaron C. Nix Phone: 360-886-2560 x220 Fax: 360-886-2592

and

Beckwith Consulting Group (“Consultant™)
PO Box 704
LaConner, WA 98257

Contact: Tom Beckwith, FAICP  Phone: 360.466.3536 Fax: 360.466.3601

Tax Id No.:

for professional services in connection with the following project:
Development of non-motorized transportation and trail planning project (the “Project”).
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Services by Consultant

1.1 Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work attached to
this Agreement as Exhibit "A." The services performed by Consultant shall not exceed the
Scope of Work nor shall the Consultant be entitled to a greater amount of compensation as that
provided in this Agreement without the prior written authorization of the City.

1.2 The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of
Work. Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall
be agreed to by the parties and incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.

1.3 Consultant represents and warrants that it, its staff to be assigned to the Project,
and its subconsultants and their staff have the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary
to provide the services required by this Agreement and are appropriately accredited and licensed
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by Consultant and its
subconsultants under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in
similar circumstances.

Professional Services Agreement



2. Schedule of Work

2.1 Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work in
accordance with the Schedule attached to this contract as Exhibit “B.”

2.2 Time is of the essence as to the work provided in the Scope of Work. Consultant
will diligently proceed with the work and shall assure that it, and its subconsultants, will have
adequate staffing at all times in order to complete the Scope of Work in a timely manner. If
factors beyond Consultant's control that could not have been reasonably foreseen as of the date
of this Agreement cause delay, then the parties will negotiate in good faith to determine whether
an extension is appropriate. The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any
delay, or potential delay that may trigger the need for a time extension within 3 business days
after the Consultant becomes aware of the delay or potential delay.

2.3 Consultant is authorized to proceed with services upon April 3, 2009.

3. Compensation

M LUMP SUM. Compensation for the services provided in the Scope of Work shall be a
Lump Sum of $ )

0 TIME AND MATERIALS NOT TO EXCEED. Compensation for the services provided
in the Scope of Work shall not exceed $19.120.00 without the written authorization
of the City and will be based on the list of billing rates and reimbursable expenses
attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”

O TIME AND MATERIALS. Compensation for the services provided in the Scope of
Work shall be on a time and materials basis according to the list of billing rates and
reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit “C.”

[ OTHER.
4. Payment

4.1 Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City
monthly, along with monthly invoices, in a format acceptable to the City for work performed to
the date of the invoice.

4.2 All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within sixty (60) days of actual receipt
by the City of an invoice conforming in all respects to the terms of this Agreement.

4.3  Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a
longer period is required by a third-party agreement. Consultant shall make copies available to
the City on request.

Professional Services Agreement



44  If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement,
Consultant will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may
withhold payment for such work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement.

5. Discrimination and Compliance with Laws

5.1 Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed,
color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by
federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification.

5.2 Consultant and its subconsultants shall comply with all federal, state, and local
laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement.

5.3 Any violation of this Section 5 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for immediate cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in
whole or in part, and may result in Consultant’s ineligibility to conduct further work for the
City.

6. Suspension and Termination of Agreement

6.1 The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time,
without cause, by giving Consultant notice in writing ten (10) days prior to the termination or
suspension date. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished reports, or other material
prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, shall be submitted to the City. In the event
the City terminates this Agreement prior to completion without cause, Consultant may complete
such analyses and records as may be necessary to place its files in order. Consultant shall be
entitled to compensation for any satisfactory work completed on the Project prior to the date of
suspension or termination.

6.2  Any notice from the City to Consultant regarding the suspension of this
Agreement shall specify the anticipated period of suspension. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to Consultant's reasonable expenses and shall be
subject to verification. Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement
without delay when the suspension period ends.

7. Standard of Care

7.1 Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill, and
experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately
accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services
Consultant provides under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently
practicing in similar circumstances.

8. Ownership of Work Product

Professional Services Agreement



8.1 Ownership of the originals of any reports, data, studies, surveys, charts, maps,
drawings, specifications, figures, photographs, memoranda, and any other documents which are
developed, compiled, or produced as a result of this Agreement, whether or not completed, shall
be vested in the City and shall be submitted to the City upon termination of this Agreement. Any
reuse of these materials by the City for projects or purposes other than those that fall within the
scope of this Agreement and the Project to which it relates, without written concurrence by
Consultant, will be at the sole risk of the City.

8.2 The City acknowledges Consultant’s documents as instruments of professional
service. Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property
of the City upon completion of the work. The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify
Consultant against all claims made against Consultant for damage or injury, including defense
costs, arising out of the City’s reuse of such documents beyond the use for which they were
originally intended without the written authorization of Consultant.

8.3 Methodology, software, logic, and systems developed under this Agreement are
the property of Consultant and the City, and may be used as either Consultant or the City see fit,

including the right to revise or publish the same without limitation.

9. Indemnification/Hold Harmless

9.1 Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including attorney fees, arising directly or indirectly out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or
omissions of Consultant or its subconsultants in performance of this Agreement, except for
injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City.

10. Insurance

10.1  Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and
shall provide proof satisfactory to the City that such insurance is procured and maintained by
each of its subconsultants, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by
Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

10.2 Consultant shall procure and maintain the following types and amounts of
insurance:

a. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned non-owned, hired, and
leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. This insurance shall have a minimum
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.

b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage and shall
cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and

Professional Services Agreement



advertising injury. This insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

c. Workers” Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington.

d. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.

10.3 The Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Professional
Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

a. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance vis-a-vis the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be
excess over Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

b. Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
cancelled, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City.

10.4 The City shall be named as an additional insured under Consultant’s Automobile
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies with respect to the work to be
performed for the City pursuant to this Agreement.

10.5 Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less
than A:VIL.

10.6  Declaration pages issued by the insurance carriers for the policies mentioned in
this Section 10 showing such insurance to be in force shall be filed with the City not less than ten
(10) days following both parties signing this Agreement and before commencement of the work.
In addition, the City may request, in writing, a full copy from Consultant of any insurance policy
Consultant must procure and maintain pursuant to this Agreement and Consultant must provide
such copy to the City within ten (10) days of Consultant’s receipt of the City’s request. Any
policy or required insurance written on a claims-made basis shall provide coverage as to all
claims arising out of the services performed under this Agreement and for three (3) years
following completion of the services to be performed. It shall be a material breach of this
Agreement for Consultant to fail to procure and maintain the insurance required by this Section
10 or to provide the proof of such insurance to the City as provided for in this Agreement.

11. Assigning or Subcontracting

11.1  Consultant shall not assign, transfer, subcontract, or encumber any rights, duties,
or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the City,
which consent may be withheld at the sole discretion of the City.

12. Independent Contractor

Professional Services Agreement



12.1 Consultant and its subconsultants are, and shall be at all times during the term of
this Agreement, independent contractors.

13. Notice

13.1  All notices required by this Agreement shall be considered properly delivered
when personally delivered, when received by facsimile, or on the third day following mailing,
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested to:

City: City Administrator
City of Black Diamond
P.O. Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
Fax: 360-886-2592

With a copy to: Loren D. Combs and

VSI Law Group

3600 Port of Tacoma Rd. Ste. 311
Tacoma, WA 98424

Fax: 253-922-5848

Consultant: Beckwith Consulting Group
Attention: Tom Beckwith
PO Box 704
LaConner, WA 98257
Fax: 360.466.3601

14.  Disputes

14.1 Any action for claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Washington. Venue shall be in King County Superior
Court, Kent, Washington.

15. Attorney Fees

15.1 In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, the
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and
reasonable attorney fees from the other party.

16. General Administration and Management on Behalf of the City

16.1 The City Administrator for the City, or his designee, shall review and approve
Consultant's invoices to the City under this Agreement and shall have primary responsibility for
overseeing and approving work or services to be performed by Consultant.

Professional Services Agreement



17. Extent of Agreement/Modification

17.1  This Agreement, together with any attachments or addenda, represents the entire
and integrated Agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may only be amended,
modified, or added to by written instrument properly signed by both parties. The parties
acknowledge the general contract rule that a clause in a contract, such as this one, prohibiting
oral modifications is itself generally subject to oral modification. However, in order to ensure
certainty as to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the parties waive this general
contract rule.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND CONSULTANT
By: By:

Howard Botts Printed Name:
Its: Mayor Its:
Date: Date:
Attest:
By:

Brenda L. Streepy
City Clerk

Professional Services Agreement



Exhibit A

Professional Services Agreement



Scope of Work

1: Conduct retreat with Trail Advisory Committee (TAC)

We will conduct a workshop or retreat with you, your staff, your Trails Advisory Committee (TAC) and
any others you deem appropriate to review the scope, tasks of work, time schedule, and other
particulars of the proposed work program before finalizing your process. This would provide your
participants an opportunity to review and strategize about:

= g vision - concerning the context, scope, and particulars of your proposed non-motorized
transportation and park trail planning process,

= an assessment - of your current city comprehensive plan, park element plan, Lake Sawyer
Regional Park charrette and plan, as well as other jurisdiction or development plans and projects
to date in light of the vision statement above, and

= identify who and how to involve - trail user and interest groups, homeowner associations,
Enumclaw School District, Metro Transit, and other agency jurisdictions like Auburn, Kent, King
County, Washington State Parks & Recreation Commission, Washington State Department of Fish &
Wildlife, Natural Resources, WSDOT, and others m in your planning process, as well as the public-
at-large.

Your participants will review the proposed process and identify issues and concerns to be resolved
during the course of work. Based on the results of the retreat, we will finalize the proposed scope,
tasks, schedules, products, and other particulars with you.

Deliverable - a validated consultant services agreement with detailed scope of work and issues
identification.

2: Review scope/issues with Planning Commission and City Council

Based on the results of task 1, we will review your proposed scope, tasks, schedules, products, and
other particulars with your Planning Commission and City Council during workshop sessions. Your
workshop participants will review the proposed process and identify issues and concerns to be
resolved during the course of work.

Webpage - following the workshops, we will post materials on the planning process, schedule,
meeting locations, and other particulars on a link to your webpage on a continuous basis throughout
the project. We will add information developed during the process and provide for a downloading of
proposals, documents, and other particulars to increase public information and participation
opportunities.

Deliverable - kick-off meeting with the participants, advisory groups, public agencies, and user
organizations and a discussion and identification of the concerns, issues, objectives, and other
particulars to be considered during the planning process.

Supply, demand, and financial assessments

3: Inventory/evaluate existing system

We will inventory and compile a summary description, appropriate supporting graphics, and indexed
maps of all existing and programmed non-motorized transportation and park trails systems within
the Black Diamond Urban Growth Area Agreement (BDUGAA). We will describe the history,
destinations, development condition, master plan status, improvements program, development
capabilities, volumes, accident history, safety hazards, and other relevant features of each non-
motorized transport and parks trails system mode including:

Professional Services Agreement



=  walking and hiking trails - including Black Diamond Elementary School and neighborhood
pathways and sidewalks, designated road shoulders, park walking trails, off-road trails and
known walking routes, and trailheads,

= on and off-road biking trails - including designated lanes, shoulders, and roadways of known
bicycle touring routes along SR-169, Black Diamond Road, and Green River Gorge Road, school
and neighborhood commute routes, off-road trails and known cycling routes, and trailhead or
service locations, and

= pedestrian streetscape systems - including business district pathways, boardwalks, and sidewalk
extensions, wayfinding signage, gateway improvements, artworks, and transit connections.

Deliverable - an inventory of non-motorized transportation and park trails, routes, destinations,
trailheads or service sites determining the existing level-of-service (ELOS) for each non-motorized
transport or park trails modal category.

4: Inventory/evaluate opportunities

We will utilize the mapping base and field evaluations to analyze existing and potential destinations,
routes, properties, sites or other features that may provide non-motorized transportation and park
trails opportunities including:

= environments - scenic, historic, natural areas, viewpoints, facilities, and corridors of interest to
non-motorized transportation and park trails system users within designated King County and
Black Diamond’s designated Ravensdale Ridge and Creek Corridor open space and nature
conservancy’s including Plum Creek’s dedications,

= destinations - Black Diamond Elementary School, Lake Sawyer and other city and county parks,
public facilities, historical landmarks, business districts, and other commuter or recreational
activity centers,

= transit links - Metro bus routes, stops, and park-n-ride lots,

= roadways - including public and private right-of-way, pavement width and condition, operating
speeds, traffic and transit volumes, transit stops and park-n-ride lots, sight lines, shoulder
conditions and capabilities, destinations, commute potentials, accident histories, and safety
conditions particularly along SR-169, Black Diamond Road, Green River Gorge Road, and the
proposed future road network involving Pipeline Road, Annexation Road, North and South
Connector Roads,

= utility corridors - including former Northern Pacific Railroad track alignment through Black
Diamond, natural gas, power line, and flood control or dike improvement ownership and
easements,

= properties - owned by the city, county, state, and federal departments of highway, fisheries,
wildlife, ecology, natural resources, and others including homeowner associations and large
private landholders such as Plum Creek, and

= user concentrations - neighborhoods, housing developments, transit transfer stations, and
business district locations likely to generate substantial volumes of potential non-motorized
transportation and park trail system users.

Deliverable - an analysis of the strategic value of each of the above areas for potential non-motorized
transport system and park trail developments.

5: Project non-motorized transportation and parks trails system demands

We will project non-motorized transportation and park trail system requirements using a combination
of methodologies developed from the Washington State Resource Conservation Office (RCO - formerly
the Interagency Board for Outdoor Recreation (IAC)) Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation
Plan (SCORP) participation model and user trends. Using our participation model and a level-of-
service (LOS) standard, we will:

= analyze economic, demographic, and land use projections - including estimates of population
by age groups over the next 20-year period as Black Diamond increases in population to a
projected 16,980 persons,

= establish existing level-of-service (ELOS) standards - and project non-motorized transportation
and park trail demand in destination and route requirements terms,

= subtract existing and programmed improvements - to determine system needs, and

Professional Services Agreement



= project the acquisition, design, construction, and other costs - involved in developing and
maintaining non-motorized transportation and park trail system improvements necessary to
resolve unmet demands.

Deliverable - a comparison of LOS standards with results we have achieved for other jurisdictions
including Island, Kitsap, Pierce, and Snohomish Counties, Vashon Island, and University Place, Gig
Harbor, Wenatchee, and SeaTac cities, among others.

6: Assess financial conditions/prospects
We will analyze your financial prospects in regards to:

= present and probable trends - in general fund revenues, expenditure patterns, capital
improvement program requirements, potential bonded debt capacity, and voter referendum
issues,

= any supplemental funding allocations - from motor vehicle gas and excise tax funds, real estate
excise tax, user fee revenues, enterprise accounts, state and federal grants, obligation bonds, and
special revenue funds including your transfer development rights (TDR) program,

= applicability of other funding approaches and prospects - including special recreation or
transportation service areas, special use agreements, joint venture developments, land leases,
self-help contract agreements, and environmental impact mitigation strategies, and

= present and potential revenue sharing opportunities - that could be provided under the
transportation and park growth impact fee mitigation allowed in the Washington State Growth
Management Act (GMA).

Deliverable - an analysis of past revenue and expenditure patterns for non-motorized transportation
and park trail projects and a projection of possible funding sources for future system developments.

7: Review inventory assessments with the Trails Advisory Committee (TAC)

We will review the implications of the non-motorized transportation and park trail system supply,
opportunity, intercept surveys, and financial projections during workshop review sessions with you,
your staff, your Trails Advisory Committee (TAC), and any other parties you deem appropriate.

Deliverable - the clarification by workshop participants of policy issues and questions to be resolved in
following tasks of work.

Goal and strategy development

8: Conduct public planning/design charrette

We will conduct a workshop or design charrette with you, your staff, your Trails Advisory Committee,
Planning Commission, Enumclaw School District, Friends of Lake Sawyer, user group organizations,
homeowner associations, and other interested parties to develop preliminary planning and design
solutions.

We will conduct the session as a brainstorming workshop (charrette), where the participants will
jointly create (and we illustrate) as many ideas as possible for every non-motorized transportation
and park trail mode from water trails to horse, hike, bike, and streetscape option. We will develop
these initial charrettes without critical evaluation until the participants are satisfied that all possible
ideas have been explored.

We will then have the participants evaluate every proposal listing negative and positive features.
Where appropriate, we may refine, expand, or combine proposals as a means of increasing positive
and decreasing negative features. We will continue the iterative charrettes until the participants are
satisfied that every idea has been fully evaluated.

We will then poll the group to determine the level of support for each proposal and thereby which
concepts we further develop into plan elements.

Deliverable - one-of-a-kind workshop exhibits created from the charrettes. A survey determining

participants and issues and a report describing workshop comments and implications for each non-
motorized transportation and park trail plan element.

Professional Services Agreement



9: Draft goals and strategies
Based on the results of the charrettes in task 9, we will develop detailed non-motorized
transportation and park trail system planning objectives to include:

Goals

= determination of - non-motorized transportation and park trail modal categories,
= service development priorities - for specific destinations, routes, and sites,
= system development priorities - by modal type and service area.

Strategies

= city role/responsibility options - by modal category, by service area, by route or site for
acquisition and development, for maintenance and operations,

= existing and proposed level-of-service (ELOS/PLOS) standards - to be provided non-motorized
and park trail modal developments along with specific service area and site priorities,

= funding strategies - for each service area, mode, and route including concepts that allocate
monies acquired from GMA growth impact fees and services, and

= environmental mitigation strategies - to be used to resolve development impacts along and
between trail corridors.

Deliverable - measurable goals and strategies reviewed with and agreed upon by the participating
user groups, agencies, and other parties.

10: Select strategy options with Trails Advisory Committee

We will review the goal statements and strategy options during workshop review sessions with you,
your staff, your Trails Advisory Committee and/or Planning Commission, and other parties you deem
appropriate.

Deliverable - resolution of final goal statements and select strategy approaches to be used in the plan's
development and implementation.

Development plan elements

11: Create development plan elements

Based on the results of tasks 9-12, we will develop 20-year comprehensive non-motorized
transportation and park trail system plan elements to include descriptive graphics, overlay maps,
illustrative designs, trail design standards, site plans, construction and maintenance/repair cost
estimates, and texts of:

= walking and hiking trails - identifying proposed Black Diamond Elementary School and
neighborhood pathways and sidewalks, improved road shoulders, park walking trail systems, off-
road hiking trails, shoreline and tideland trails, and trailhead improvements,

= on and off-road biking trails - identifying proposed lane and roadway shoulder improvements,
signed bicycle touring routes, school and neighborhood commute routes, off-road trails, BMX and
mountain bike courses, and trailhead improvements along SR-169, Black Diamond Road, Green
River Gorge Road, and the proposed future road network,

= pedestrian streetscape systems - identifying proposed business district pathways, boardwalks,
and sidewalk extensions, gateway, and wayfinding signage improvements,

= transit connections - identifying Metro bus stops, storage areas, and services,

= safety and operating programs element - defining codes of conduct, safety instruction
programs, emergency call and response provisions, trailhead services, and security,

* maintenance and operations plan - identifying required staff, equipment, yards and buildings
necessary to provide supporting maintenance and administration requirements to sustain the
trails over their expected replacement and repair life cycle, and

=  Dbenefits assessment - indicating the cost/benefit returns of the non-motorized and park trail
system and proposed development plan elements to the transportation and park systems at large.

Professional Services Agreement



Deliverable - non-motorized transportation and park trail plan elements organized into a format
conforming to requirements for a GMA/SEPA plan element along with illustrative sketches and map
overlays.

12: Select preferred strategy/plan elements with Trails Advisory Committee

Based on the results of the open house in task 14, we will review the non-motorized transportation
and park trail plan elements with you, your staff, your Trails Advisory Committee and/or Planning
Commission, and any other parties you deem appropriate at workshop review sessions.

Deliverable - selection of preferred non-motorized transportation and park trail system strategy
options and plan elements to include final land acquisition, design, developments, and priorities.

13: Validate preferred strateqgy/plan elements with Planning Commission and City Council

We will review the non-motorized transportation and park trail plan elements with your Planning
Commission and City Council at a workshop review session. Your workshop participants will review
and validate final plan contents.

Deliverable - validation by Planning Commission and City Council of preferred non-motorized
transportation and park trail system strategy options and plan elements to include final land
acquisition, design, and development projects and priorities.

Implementation program

14: Create implementation program/CFP
Based on the results of task 16, we will develop a detailed non-motorized transportation and park
trail implementation program to include:

= project priority rating system - defining project implementation priorities accounting for
accident and safety deficiencies, safe school walk routes, high volume commuter routes and
linkages, visible public interest, and other factors,

=  6/20-year capital facilities program (CFP) - defining existing and proposed level-of-service
(ELOS/PLOS) and trail design standards with estimated project acquisition, design, development,
operation, and maintenance as well as cyclical replacement and repair costs and possible
funding sources or methods for the city and joint venture partners,

= interagency agreements - including draft terms and understandings between the city and other
possible non-motorized transportation and park trail system joint venture program or project
partners,

» a legislative package - outlining legislations and authorizations (along with model ordinances)
necessary to impose growth impact fee assessment or set-aside options, mitigate development
impacts, define non-motorized transportation and park trail plan GIS overlay maps, obtain
multiple use land agreements, and other strategies of the preferred plan.

Deliverable - draft contents of the non-motorized transportation and park trail implementation
program conforming to GMA/SEPA requirements.

15: Design/conduct a mail-out/mail-back or internet survey

Using the results of task 18, we will design a mail-out/mail-back survey or internet survey to be
conducted of registered city voters about final non-motorized transportation and park trail system
development and implementation issues. We will mail background materials and a copy of the survey
to each household within the controlled sample group - or post the survey on your website for on-
line completion and collation. The survey may include questions about:

= desires - for specific non-motorized transportation and park trail projects including possible
methods of financing,

= approvals and priorities - for special project proposals including property acquisitions and
illustrative route, trail, and trailhead site design concepts,

= financing preferences and priorities - including methods and amounts of proposed general and
transportation fund allocations, GMA growth impact fees, general obligation bonds, and other
user fees, and

= characteristics - including place and length of residence, age, and household status.

Professional Services Agreement



Deliverable - a representative method of determining public support for various non-motorized
transportation and park trail plan concepts and strategies, particularly aspects requiring public
implementation for your city officials to use during subsequent plan review and adoption proceedings.

Note - we have had considerable success using the survey method to determine resident preferences for
an open space and trails plan for Skagit County, the restoration of the Olympic Brewery complex for a
park plan for Tumwater, a park and recreation program for Mount Vernon, and financing and impact
fee options for Bainbridge Island, among others. The surveys provided elected officials clear indications
of the priorities and degree of support residents had for specific plan features and implementation
program particulars.

16: Select implementation program/CFP with Trails Advisory Committee
We will review implementation program particulars and the mail-out/mail-back or internet survey
results during workshop review sessions with you, your staff, and your Trails Advisory Committee
and/or Planning Commission, and any other parties you deem appropriate.

Deliverable - selection of preferred capital facility projects, schedules, revenue sources, growth impact
fee structure, and other particulars.

Review/adoption process

17: Edit/publish plan/implementation/CFP program documents
We will compile and edit camera-ready copy of the following non-motorized transportation and park
trail plan documents:

= Powerpoint - for public presentations and display,

= plan brochure - with plan and illustrative graphics on one side, inventory and implementation
particulars on the other to be used as a future non-motorized transportation and park trail
system plan handout following plan adoption,

= narrative report - to include a summarization of the non-motorized transportation and park trail
system development plan and implementation chapters, and

= technical appendix - to include the results of all tasks of the work program, workshops, public
open houses, and other participation events with a SEPA checklist of major impacts and
mitigation.

Deliverable - disk copies of all text, tables, maps, and graphics in formats suitable to your software
requirements for you to publish and distribute the plan documents.

18: Present plan/implementation program/CFP to Planning Commission and City Council

We will assist you, your staff, and your Trails Advisory Committee in the presentation and discussion
of the contents of the plan, implementation program, public open houses, mail-out/mail-back or
internet survey, and other recommendations with the Planning Commission and City Council.

Deliverable - Planning Commission and City Council public hearings and adoption of the non-
motorized transportation and park trail plan as an element of your city’s comprehensive plan in
accordance with GMA requirements.

Professional Services Agreement



Exhibit B

Professional Services Agreement



12 March
Gantt Chart 2009

Black Diamond - Non-Motorized Transportation & Park Trail Plan

Team Leader/Project Planner - Tom Beckwith FAICP
Landscape Architect - Terry Reckord ASLA
| Engineer - Mike Read PE
| Opinion Surveyor - GMA Research Corporation

I
| | weeks
I

I
I
[
[
[
||
1 Conduct retreat w/TAC X X 4 $340 $0 $340
X

11 1 1 1 1 prof labor mtls/ total
Initiate project | 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 01 2 3 45 hrs cost cost cost
2 Review scope w/City Council 2 $170 $0 $170
Inventory/assess opportunities
3 Inventory/evaluate existing system X X X 20  $1,400 $0 $1,400
4 Inventory/evaluate opportunities X X X 24  $1,680 $0 $1,680
5 Project demands/needs X 8 $680 $0 $680
6 Assess financial conditions/prospects X 12 $1,020 $0 $1,020
7 Review findings w/TAC X X X 6 $510 $50 $560
Define goals/strategies
8 Conduct planning/design charrette X X X 10 $850 $150 $1,000
9 Draft strategies and goals X X X 6 $510 $0 $510
10 Select strategies w/TAC X X X 2 $170 $0 $170
Create plan elements
11 Create development plan elements X X X 48  $3,600 $0 $3,600
12 Select plan w/TAC X X X 6 $510 $0 $510
13 Validate plan w/City Council X 2 $170 $50 $220
Develop implementation program
14 Create implementation/CFP X X X 36  $3,060 $0 $3,060
15 Design/conduct mail/internet survey X X 16 $880 $0 $880
16 Select implement/CFP w/TAC X X X 6 $510 $0 $510

Review/adopt plan

| 17 Complile/edit plan/CFP documents [X x x X] | 24 $1,800 $0  $1,800

Professional Services Agreement



18 Present to PC/City Council X o I $170 $50 $220

Subtotal 250 $18,910 $300 $18,330
Contingency 4% $790
Project budget $19,120

Assumptions by task
18 Assumes we will provide camera-ready and disk copies of all final documents and you will make all reproduction copies.

Hourly rates=$85-120/hr senior professionals, $65-85/hr professionals, $45-55/hr technical and $35-45/hr for support skills.

Professional Services Agreement



JUIWIAXBY SIDIAIIG [EUOISSIJOL]

08'L$ 0% 008'l$  ¥¢ B I X X X X| spusWINo0p d40/ueid ppaeliduod g |
uejd ydope/malnay
16% 0% 0LGS 9 X X X DV LM ddDAusWs|dun 1088 /|
88% 0% 088% gl X X Asnns jsulsiuyiew yonpuooubissg gy
a0'es 0% 090'c$ 9¢ X X X dd4o/uoiejuswsidwl sjes1) G|
welboid uoneuswajdwl dojeasqg
443 05$ 0/1$ z X lounod Ao/m ued jepien )
LGS 0$ 015$ 9 X X X OvLim ueld pajeg gl
09'cs 0% 009'c$ er X X X s)uews|s ue|d Juswidojeasp alealr) 7|
sjuawala ueld ajealn
L1$ 0% 0L1$ [4 X X X OV L/m selbsjens 1oses ||
LGS 0¢ 015% 9 ¥ ¥ X sjeob pue saibejens yelq oL
0014 05.$ 068% oL X X X spaueys ubisep/Buluue|d Jonpuon &
so1bajelys/s|eob aulaq
05% 0s% 0LS$ 9 X X X OV L/m sBuipuly MmaInsy g
AV 0% 0oLy 2L X sjoadsold/suonipuo? [elouBUly SSassy
B9% 0% 089¢% 8 X spesu/spuewasp pslolg 9
B2$ 0% 0885 9l X X sAaAlns yoeanno 1onpuoojubissg g
B9'L$ 0% 089°'LS ¥z X X X sapunpoddo ayenjeas/fiojusay]
ov'Lg 0% 0ov'L$ 0O¢ X ¥ ¥ wslsAs Bunsixe sjeneAs/AIOIUBAU] €
sanuunuoddo ssassejliojuany|
LIS 0% 0LL% [4 ounod Auo/m adoos maingy ¢
res 0% ores 14 L
00 1502 1500 Sy S v € ¢ L 0 6 8 Z 9 6 v € 2 | yoefold sjeniu
10) /shw  Joge| joud L L)

|1

Lol syeam | |
.

uonelodio) yslessey YWD - JoAsamng uoluido |
3d peay SN - Jesuibug

VISV piodoey Aug) - 1o8)yoly edeospue
d2Ivd yimiosg wo] - Jauue|d jos(oldilepes Wwes |

X
X X OV.L/M Jeal}el 19npuos
[
[
I
.
I
_

ueld [1el] yied '@ uoheuodsuel] pazLOJON-UON - puolielqg ¥oejg

poe HeYD JUED)
MEN ZL




JUIWIRIBY SINAIIG [BUOISSIJOLJ

"s(Ifs poddns Joj JU/GH-GE$ PUB [B0IUYD8) JU/GG-G1S ‘sleucisseold 1Y/Ge-Gog ‘s|euoissajold Joiuss JY/0Z L-58¢=s2181 AlINOH

'saldoo uononpo.dal (e aXeW ||Im NOA pue SjuswNoop [Buly |2 jo s31doD ysIp pue Apeal-eiowed aplaodd M om sawnssy gl
jse]} Aq suopduinssy

00'0Z$ 186pnq 198(0.d
6.% %Y fousbBuiuon
L2'BLS 00¢$ 0L6'8L$ 0S¢ [elo1gng
2cs

058 o5 z A X1 IBUROD AID/0d G juesald 6L |



SBTA

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTS

SB & ASSOCIATES, INC.
3645 WALLINGFORD AVE N.
SEATTLE, WA 98103
(206) 789-2133 Fax (206) 789-2186

March 3, 2009

Aaron Nix,

Parks/Natural Resources Director
City of Black Diamond

P.O. Box 599

Black Diamond, Washington

Dear Aaron;

Thank you for the opportunity to propose on a Trails Plan for Black Diamond. SB&A is
experienced in preparing trail plans for cities and counties that look forward to regional
linkages, developing trail resources among schools and other community facilities and
providing recreational opportunities for their citizens.

We have prepared a Trails Plan for Yakima County in the past year, to apply for funding
from the Recreation and Conservation Office of the State, and built a trail for the City of
SeaTac along the airport west side. We also completed the trails plan for the City of
Enumclaw coordinating with King and Peirce Counties. Going back to the mid 1980s we
have prepared a number of trails plans, designed many trails and trail types, performed
trail feasibility studies for clients and written grants for funding trails.

Among our projects are the Spokane Trails Plan, the Mountains to Sound Trail Bellevue
section, the Milton section of the Interurban Trail, the Linden section of the Interurban
Trail, the Missing Link Study for the Burke Gilman (Ballard), the Tommy Thompson
Trail in Anacortes and the SeaTac West Side Trail. The important aspect of our practice
is that we both plan and design trails and trail systems. As we plan a trails system, we are
always thinking about how it will actually be designed and implemented. Therefore, we
ensure that the trails plan can be designed and built as intended.



City of Black Diamond
Trails Plan Proposal

A review of the newly adopted Park, Recreation and Open Space Plan indicates that there
is some funding in place for planning and acquisition, suggesting also that there is a
notion of how and where trails could/should be included through town.

We are most interested in working with you once again and with the residents of Black
Diamond on the inaugural Trails Plan for the city. We envision a trail system that can be
implemented, that serves commuter, recreation, school and neighborhood needs and that
reduces the reliance on the automobile.

Sincerely

Susan E. Black, President
SB&A Landscape Architects



City of Black Diamond
Trails Plan Proposal

SCOPE OF WORK: BLACK DIAMOND TRAILS PLAN

Project Understanding

Black Diamond has recently completed a Park, Recreation and Open Space Plan adopted
in December 2008. A key piece of the planning for recreation and access is a Trails Plan
for linking facilities in the city with subdivisions, community facilities and regional and
local recreation resources such as trails and parks. The Comprehensive Plan of 2008
reiferates goals and policies in support of a healthy recreation trail system and on and off-
road trails as property and monies allow. This trails plan will develop policies and
standards for trail development among public and private developments.

Task A. Base Data Development and Research

o Collect and refine base data for the City of Black Diamond including streets,
highways, parcels, existing and proposed developments, topography, public lands
and facilities, natural areas, schools, scenic resources, existing trails, proposed
trails etc through the GIS system.

o Contact the County and cities in the area for mapping of regional trail systems,
alignments and anticipated developments that may influence the Black Diamond
Trails Plan.

o Read and summarize expectations for trail use from the 2008 Comprehensive Plan
Update, 2008 Park Plan and other documents of the city.

o Develop graphic trail cross sections consistent with King County Trail Standards
and classifications as a start for illustrating trail types, accessibility, safety, on and
off-road trails, trail width, etc.

o Contact stakeholders and trail advocates in and around community.

Deliverables:

Hard copies of maps from GIS and other mapping sources supplying base data

Mapping of regional trails by County

Memorandum of visions, goals, policies and recommendations from other
planning documents including Park Plan, Comp Plan, ete.

Trail Cross sections for classification system adoptions by BlackDiamond

Transportation Corridors Map of Black Diamond

Summary memo on discussions with stakeholders and trail advocates

Schedule: April/May

Task B. Base Map Development
Develop a base map for a trails plan from compiled information above.

Meet with Public Works and other staff to discuss County Standard Trail Section
modifications and application of these standards to Black Diamond streets.



City of Black Diamond
Trails Plan Proposal

Deliverables:

Base Map with Notes

Trail Types and Cross sections
Schedule: May

Task C, Coneceptual Trails Approach

Prepare overlays for various trail alignments and corridors with notes concerning regional
linkages, parklands, scenic resources, and destinations. Develop alternative hub locations
for trailhead improvements including parking (if any). Develop draft policy statements,
criteria and and standards to guide public and private development of trails

Deliverables:

Draft Trail standards, policies and criteria, standards and graphics with
recommended improvements by classification and location

Staff Meeting to discuss

Schedule:

June 1-June 15.

Task D. Open House

Plan, prepare graphics and attend a public open house for education of the community to
the trail planning process and to discuss potential trail routes and corridors, hubs, trail
types, standards, policies, regional linkages, destinations and alignments.

Document public input comments to various frail types and alignments.

Deliverables:

Open House Meeting with graphics, attendance by 2 SB&A staff and summary
meeting minutes from public comment.

Summary of Public Comments

List of names and addresses of attendees

Schedule: Junel5- July 1

Task E. Prepare Draft Plan and Present to Council

Refine graphics based on input from public open house and develop PowerPoint for a
Council Presentation of draft trails plan for Black Diamond.

Present Draft Trails plan including:
Existing conditions in Black Diamond
Existing Black Diamond Trails
Trail Classification System (policies, standards)
Trail Head Locations and Improvements
Proposed Trail Segments Descriptions



City of Black Diamond
Trails Plan Proposal

Trail Segment Preliminary Estimate of Probable Cost
Trail Funding Strategies
Trail Plan Public Involvement

Deliverables:

Draft Plan in electronic format with graphics

PowerPoint Presentation for Council Meeting/Discussion
Attendance at Council Meeting

Summary of Comments

Schedule: August 15th

Task F. Final Trails Plan
Finalize document graphics and text.
Deliverables: 1 Hard Copy, 1 electronic format document with graphics

Schedule: Upon receipt of comments, but not later than September 1, 2009,

Fees:

The above-described process can be accomplished within a $25,000 budget provided
timely reviews, public meetings, council meetings and staff response. It necessarily
assumes that there will be no serious delays in drafting or approval of recommended trails
policies, standards or alignment recommendations, and that the final product is intended
to be in support of the Comp Plan and Park Plan efforts that have gone before.



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond
Post Office Box 599
AGENDABILL Black Diamond, WA 98010

ITEM INFORMATION

SUBJECT: Agenda Date: April 2, 2009 AB09-031
Department/Committee/Individual Created | Reviewed
Ordinance No. 09-896, amending Mayor Howard Botts X
Black Diamond Municipal Code City Administrator -Gwen Voelpel
section 10.12.020 to allow goods and City Attorney — Loren D. Combs X
materials to be delivered to and City Clerk — Brenda L. Streepy
picked up from locations within the Finance — May Miller
City by vehicles exceeding weight limit Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Cost Impact: Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson
Fund Source: Police — Jamey Kiblinger
Timeline: April 2, 2009 Court — Kaaren Woods
Comm. Dev. — Steve Pilcher

Attachments: Ordinance No. 09-896

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Last year Council adopted an ordinance imposing gross vehicle weight limit to protect its streets
from further serious damage or destructions. Now it is necessary to protect the local businesses.
Adoption of this ordinance would allow vehicles exceeding the gross weight limits to make
deliveries into the City and remove materials from within the City for delivery outside of the
City in vehicles that may exceed the gross vehicle weight. This ordinance is a public emergency
ordinance and effective upon its adoption.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Ordinance No. 09-896, amending
Black Diamond Municipal Code section 10.12.020 to allow goods and
materials to be delivered to and picked up from locations within the City by
vehicles exceeding the posted gross vehicle weight limit.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

April 2, 2009




EMERGENCY ORDINANCE

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON
Ordinance No. 09-896

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING
BLACK DIAMOND MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 10.12.020 TO
ALLOW GOODS AND MATERIALS TO BE DELIVERED TO AND
PICKED UP FROM LOCATIONS WITHIN THE CITY BY
VEHICLES EXCEEDING THE POSTED GROSS VEHICLE
WEIGHT LIMIT.

WHEREAS, streets within the city limits of Black Diamond are relatively old and narrow,
constructed at a time when vehicles using those streets were considerably lighter than those which
now regularly travel upon said streets; and

WIHEREAS, as designed and constructed, the city streets are inadequate for the heavy loads
imposed upon them by the current, daily truck traffic; and

WHEREAS, the City owned rights-of-way on said streets are also generally narrow, so that
the streets themselves cannot be expanded or otherwise improved so as to accommodate the heavier
traffic; and

WHERAS, City streets are sustaining serious and substantial damage caused by said truck
travel, damage which the City does not have the financial resources to promptly repair; and

WHEREAS, RCW 46.44.080 authorizes local authorities to impose vehicle weight limits on
city streets whenever any street, because of certain conditions, will be seriously damaged or
destroyed unless the permissible weights of vehicles thereon is reduced; and

WHEREAS, the recent closing of the Green River Bridge on SR 169 has resulted in
increased trucks on city streets; and

WHEREAS, although the City has already imposed a gross vehicle weight limit to protect
its streets from further serious damage or destruction, it is necessary, in order to protect the local
businesses, to allow vehicles exceeding the gross weight limits to make deliveries into the City, and
remove materials from within the City for delivery outside of the City in vehicles that may exceed
the gross vehicle weight, now, therefore,

Ordinance No. 09-896
Page 1 of 2



EMERGENCY ORDINANCE

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY,
WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Black Diamond Municipal Code Section 10.12.020 is hereby amended to
read as follows:

10.12.020 Exceptions to Maximum Gross Weight,

The following vehicles shall be exempt from the weight limitations imposed
in Section 10.12.010:

A. Vehicles owned and operated by the City;

B. School buses:

C. Emergency vehicles:

D. Trucks transporting perishable commodities or commodities necessary
for the health and welfare of local residents;

E. Garbage trucks;

F. Vehicles making deliveries to destinations located on City streets; and

G. Vehicles transporting materials, such as rock and gravel, that are mined
within the City limits for transport to locations within or outside of the City.

Section 2. This Ordinance is hereby designated as a Public Emergency Ordinance necessary
for the protection of the public health, safety, public property or the public peace and shall be
effective upon its adoption. A summary of this Ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing
the Ordinance in its entircty.

Section 3. If any provision of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this Ordinance shall remain in force
and effect.

Introduced the 2d day of April, 2009.

Passed by yes votes and no votes by the City Council at a meeting held on
the 2d day of April, 2009,

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

Mayor Howard Botts
ATTESTED BY:

Brenda L. Streepy, City Clerk

Ordinance No. 09-896
Page 2 of 2



EMERGENCY ORDINANCE

APPROVED AS TO FORM.:

Loren D. Combs, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 09-896
Page3 of 2



	Council Agenda 4-02-09
	AB09-029
	AB09-030
	AB09-031
	AB09-032
	AB09-033



